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strength.
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America is a growing $18 billion cooperative serving more
than 95,000 farmers, agribusinesses and rural residents throughout Indiana, Ohio,
Kentucky and Tennessee. We’re nearly 1,000 team members strong, with customers
throughout the four-state area. We are all part of the same vibrant, customer-owned
and -directed cooperative, and together we have strength in numbers.
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Letter to shareholders

rooted in fundamentals, with eyes on future growth
Together with our customers, Farm Credit Services of Mid-America is at the forefront
of an amazing chapter in agricultural history. This exciting time has presented us with
many growth and expansion opportunities.
By any measure, 2011 was a strong year for our cooperative, with earnings of $278.6 million, a 30.2 percent
increase over 2010, and owned and managed assets of
$18.4 billion, a 5 percent increase over 2010. This type
of success is possible only through the participation of
you, our customers. You are the primary driver behind
our success and the very reason our cooperative exists.
This period of growth has also been accompanied by
volatility, and we expect that to continue. As a lender,
our goal is to be a good steward of your capital to ensure
we can respond quickly and confidently to opportunities.
Because our cooperative doesn’t rely on the reactionary
reality of stock market fluctuations, we can focus on
the future and base decisions on a longer-term horizon.
We have our eyes on the future, but we are also rooted
in business fundamentals, such as providing exceptional
customer service. After all, that’s how we got to where
we are today.

turnaround time, making internal processes more efficient or deepening relationships with current customers,
we believe exceptional customer service is necessary for
us to remain competitive in the future. In the end, it’s
about being viewed as a trusted partner to our customers
and their businesses.
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Grow constructively

We will offer high-quality products that exceed customer
expectations and will focus on generating business from
both new and existing customers. This includes growing
core products such as crop insurance.
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Improve credit quality
and administration

In 2012 and beyond, we will help you meet the demands One of the best values we can provide to customers is to
of growing your operation and continue to strengthen work with them in a manner that ensures their future
our cooperative by focusing on five strategic objectives. success and ours. We can do that by positioning ourselves
as a dependable lender, one who works with customers in
both good and challenging times. We will also enhance
Provide exceptional
our skills to counsel customers on risk management.
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customer service
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Maintain sustainable
With an abundance of choices in today’s marketplace,
providing exceptional customer service is a must if we
financial operations
are to be a successful lender. At Farm Credit, we want to
be known as an organization that enhances the overall In 2011, nearly 24,000 customer loans representing
customer experience. Whether that’s improving loan more than $4.0 billion in loan volume took advantage of
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earnings

Left to right: George Stebbins, Chair, Board of Directors;
Bill Johnson, President and Chief Executive Officer.

our conversion program offering lower interest rates.
These lower rates will allow customers to reinvest in
their operations to keep them strong and competitive, and
help ensure the long-term stability of our cooperative. To
date, we have helped almost 50 percent of our customers
lock in a fixed rate for 10 years or more to help ensure
financial stability.
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Increase over 2010

owned and managed assets

Create a coaching culture

We can better serve our customers when we better
serve each other. To achieve this, we are creating an
environment where collaboration and accountability are
expectations for all staff, and we are providing coaching
training for employees. We are committed to facilitating
the development of current staff members, attracting
the best talent and improving the way we do our jobs to
better serve you.
I am excited to be part of this vibrant, customer-owned
and -directed cooperative. Our success depends on all
of us working together now to achieve great things in
the future. I’m confident we’ll get there by focusing on
fundamentals.

Increase over 2010

our success
T h i s t y p e o f s u c c e s s i s p o s s i b l e o n ly
t h r o u g h t h e pa r t i c i pat i o n o f yo u , o u r
c u s t o m e r s . Yo u a r e t h e d r i v e r b e h i n d
o u r s u c c e s s a n d t h e v e ry r e a s o n o u r

Bill Johnson
President and Chief Executive Officer

c o o p e r at i v e e x i s t s .
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Letter to shareholders

creating stronger rural communities
It’s been a rewarding year for Farm Credit Services of Mid-America. As a cooperative,
we achieved many of our goals. To enrich our service area, your board committed
resources to initiatives designed to foster growth in rural communities. In 2011, these
included the following:
• A rate rollback of 0.35 percent on all customer loans, 	Your board continued to look for ways your cooperative
could bring value to the communities in which our staff
and a subsequent rate reduction on all new loans. This
and customers live and work. In 2011, here are some of
action saved customers an estimated $43 million in
the ways we touched your communities.
interest expense in one year alone.
• Partnerships with universities to help ensure the next • Dozens of farm and rural community projects in
Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky and Tennessee received supgeneration of farm producers and leaders are equipped
port through our Greater Support for Rural America
with the necessary resources to succeed. In 2011,
Program. These included capital investments in 4-H
Farm Credit became a founding member of the induscamps and FFA facilities, fairground refurbishments
try advisory council for the Center for Commercial
and food bank donations. Combined, we made a $1.6
Agriculture, a Purdue University farm management
million investment in these projects.
research and education program. Our newest initiative,
the Farm Credit Scholars Program at the University of
Tennessee's Institute of Agriculture in the College of • Organizations that advocate for agriculture, including
the Ohio-based Animals for Life, Farm Animal Care
Agricultural Sciences and Natural Resources, gives us
Coalition of Tennessee and Indiana’s Family of Farmers,
an on-campus presence to familiarize the next generareceived financial support to help advance their mistion with our cooperative and provide scholarships,
sion of sharing the positive impact of farming on local,
external learning opportunities and internship oppornational and worldwide levels and bringing balanced
tunities for students.
information to consumers on animal welfare.
• Customer education programs, such as the DTN Ag
Summit and Annie’s Project, which provide countless • More than 75 college students studying finance,
agriculture or agriculture-related fields received schollearning experiences and ultimately strengthen our
arships totaling $115,000.
customer base.
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rate rollback

The percentage each customer’s interest
rate was reduced in 2011.

Farm Credit was one of several organizations involved in Habitat for
Humanity’s Agriculture Build at the Indiana State Fair last summer.
During the duration of the fair, the ag community built a home for an
Indianapolis family. Pictured here are Eric Streicher, Indianapolis,
Indiana with FCS staff members Bryce Taylor, Huntingburg, Indiana
and Heidi Smith, Kokomo, Indiana.

43M

$

Estimated savings in interest
expense for customers in one year.

• We participated with other Farm Credit associations
throughout the United States in providing nearly $2
million in national contributions. In addition, we are
pledging to partner with Farm Credit associations on
risk management projects and other programs to help
young farmers.

community investment

In 2012, our cooperative will continue to direct stewardship efforts in ways that help our customers thrive and
improve the quality of life in our communities. We look
forward to continuing our philanthropic efforts and providing each of you with the quality service you deserve
to meet your goals. We pledge to be a cooperative that
earns your trust and confidence every day.

Dozens of farm and rur al community
p roj ec t s in In diana , Ohio, K ent uck y
and Tennessee received support. These
included capital investments in 4-H camps
and FFA facilities, fairground refurbishments and food bank donations.

George Stebbins
Chair, Board of Directors

future investment

In scholarships for college
students studying finance, agriculture
or agriculture-related fields in 2011.
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continuous improvement

More than 900 opportunities for improvement have been identified.
The Continuous Improvement program was
formed in April 2011 to create a new customer
data collection system and to discover better
ways to use that information to streamline loans,
Continuous Improvement teams
have been looking for ways to
simplify, eliminate, automate
and integrate processes.

improve the customer experience, and make the
entire loan process easier for both Farm Credit
customers and Farm Credit staff.

F r a n kl i n , I n dia n a’ s A m a n da B u r k e (F i n a n cia l S e rvice s
Officer), Jill Har k er (Custom er Service R ep r esentative)
a n d Lo r i T e n n e ll (ASSOCIATE Vice P r esi d e n t – FINANCIA L
SERVICES) are m em ber s of contin uous IMPROVEMENT teams
t hat ar e made u p of e m p loy e es who not on ly wor k for
far m cr edit, but al so ar e rooted in ag ricu ltu r e an d th e
com m u nities we serve .
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Team members came from
the Louisville office and field
offices in Indiana, Ohio,
Kentucky and Tennessee.
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empowered to
drive improvement

Sometimes starting down one road leads to another
unanticipated journey. That’s what happened
in April 2011, when a group of Farm Credit Services
of Mid-America staff met to begin improving
customer data collection. First, they mapped
the journey of a customer through Farm Credit.
These findings helped them realize a number of
procedures could be streamlined to make the loan
experience easier for both customers and staff.
“Before we could create a new information-gathering system, we needed to standardize our current
processes and work across our four-state region
to align what we do and how we do it,” says Lori
Tennell, associate vice president — financial services, of the Franklin, Indiana Farm Credit office.

And that is how the Continuous
Improvement Program was born.
The Continous Improvement program started with
three groups. Two groups concentrated on improving the customer's journey to a closed loan and a
third focused on the customer experience after
loan closing.
The groups met quarterly for several days and
worked with a facilitator to keep them focused on
the task and to provide common problem-solving
tools. Team members came from the Louisville
office and field offices in Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky
and Tennessee. Items for improvement were sorted
by effort and value — the effort and resources
required from the Farm Credit team to fix the
concern and the value that the resolution would
bring to Farm Credit customers.
“When we walk into our meetings, everyone
leaves their stripes at the door,” says Jill Harker,
customer service representative at the Franklin
office. “There is no hierarchy, and it’s a very positive environment. We are free to bring up issues
that might be sensitive. If we don’t challenge our
current way of doing things, we’re not bringing
value to our customers.”
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principles of
continuous improvement
Focus on the primary constraint
Add value and eliminate waste
Increase speed and flow
Reduce variation
Create a better experience
for your customer

“To know your voice is important,
that what you say matters, and

50 percent

that people are listening is very
gratifying. I don’t know anyone on
As a result
the Continuous
our teams
whoof would
not do this
Improvement Process, time for loan

closebecause
documentation
to beaccomplishreceived
again,
we are
by customers has been shortened

from 8—
to Amanda
4 hours.
ing so much.”
Burke

“There’s new energy here, you can feel it in the air.”— Lori Tennell
Though the groups are presently limited to 12
people each, the intent is to get more staff engaged in the
process over time. Initially, more than 900 opportunities
for improvement were identified. Already, the teams have
determined solutions to 15 of the most critical concerns.
“We believe that getting as many staff members involved
in the process as we can will only make Farm Credit better,” says Amanda Burke, financial services officer at
the Franklin office, “This is a very empowering process.”

Though each group has different goals, they share the
desire to be a meaningful contributor in a collaborative
environment. “To know your voice is important, that
what you say matters and that people are listening is
very gratifying,” says Burke. “I don’t know anyone on
our teams who would not do this again, because we are
accomplishing so much.”
On both a personal and a professional level, the experience has had a positive impact. “This has changed me as
a person; it has reinvented the way I think about things,”
says Harker. “Being part of this program has not only
taught me how to measure the value I’m bringing to Farm
Credit customers, it’s also given me value.”

Tennell, Harker and Burke agree that continuous
improvement is about problem solving, while always
focusing on the customer. “Farm Credit wants to be the
lender of choice, and we want to help our customers attain
their goals, for their families and for their farming operations,” says Tennell. “It’s rewarding for us to know that we “There’s a new energy here — you can feel it in the air,”
helped them buy the farm they’ve always wanted. That’s says Tennell. “We really believe this is our opportunity
to make things better, so we want to do it right.”
what makes it a privilege for us to be here.”
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supporting education

To be donated over a four-year period to Purdue’s Center for Commercial Agriculture.

Farm Credit Services of Mid-America partners with
educational institutions to help tomorrow’s profes-

Farm Credit is one
of five founding

sionals gain the knowledge and skills they need to help

members of the

shape agriculture’s exciting future. Shown from left

Industry Council

to right, Dick Poe, senior vice president, Farm Credit,

at the Center

with Aissa Good, senior project manager, and Brent

for Commercial

Gloy, director, both from the Center for Commercial

Agriculture,

Agriculture, Purdue University.

Purdue University.

investing
in the future

“At Farm Credit, we’ve become much more conscious of

Donated to the University
of Kentucky’s Ag Leadership
Program (KALP].
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our role in helping to promote agriculture. Today,
when budgets are being cut, we can help fill that gap.”
— Dick Poe
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“We’re looking for the brightest and most exceptional
With continuing market volatility and the rising costs of
land and crop inputs, a career in agriculture may seem
out of reach for many young people. Farm Credit Services
of Mid-America is making a difference by partnering
with experts who help tomorrow’s professionals gain the
knowledge and skills they need to be part of agriculture’s
exciting future.
As an example, Farm Credit is engaged in dynamic relationships with universities. Each relationship brings its
own personality and strengths, with opportunities for
students and young agriculture professionals to learn
and grow.

in agriculture, understand their challenges and needs,
and develop education that will be relevant to them.”
Farm Credit has partnered with Purdue in the past and
is extending that relationship through involvement
with the center. As one of five founding members of the
Center’s Industry Council, Farm Credit has made a financial commitment to the center over the next four years.

Dick Poe, senior vice president – financial services, Farm
Credit, represents the cooperative on the council. “At
Farm Credit, we’ve become much more conscious of our
role in helping to promote agriculture. Today, when budgets are being cut, we can help fill that gap,” says Poe. “The
Established in 2010, the Center for Commercial Center for Commercial Agriculture is our first opporAgriculture at Purdue University provides continuing tunity to focus on commercial farming operations. Its
education to commercial farmers and unique educational work is going to serve our customers, the profession of
opportunities for undergraduate students who plan to agriculture and our cooperative.”
manage farms and agribusinesses. “The management
needs and challenges, and the economic issues facing Purdue’s goal is to develop a regional footprint, not just
commercial farming operations are getting more com- offering programs to Indiana farmers, but also to those in
plex,” says Brent Gloy, director, Center for Commercial neighboring states and nationally. “Our vision is to be the
Agriculture, Purdue University. “We want to be a leading source of management education and knowledge
resource for those who are focused on making a living generation for farmers in the business of producing the
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investing in agriculture ’ s future
kalp alumni

KALP is a rigorous 18-month learning experience
designed for young agricultural producers and

Students in the Farm Credit Scholars
Program at the University of Tennessee
over the next four years with an opportunity
to graduate with an enhanced learning
experience, prepared for careers in
agribusiness or agricultural production.

agribusiness professionals who want to be on the
leading edge of decisions that impact agriculture,
rural communities and society.

scholars across all segments of agriculture.” — David Lynn
world’s agricultural products,” says Gloy. “I’m very pleased Scheduled for introduction in fall 2012, the Farm Credit
that Farm Credit is committed to this vision and has been Scholars Program at the University of Tennessee‘s
supportive of our efforts.”
Institute of Agriculture in the College of Agricultural
Sciences and Natural Resources will provide scholarships
For the second consecutive year, Farm Credit has made and learning experiences for students. The program’s
an investment to support the Kentucky Ag Leadership goal is to enhance the learning experience of students,
Program (KALP) at the University of Kentucky. KALP is preparing them for careers in agribusiness or agricula rigorous 18-month learning experience designed for tural production. Five scholars will be selected annually,
young agricultural producers and agribusiness profes- each receiving a $2,000 scholarship every year and the
sionals who want to be on the leading edge of decisions opportunity to intern with Farm Credit. The goal is to prothat impact agriculture, rural communities and society. vide internal learning experiences through internships
They receive training in leadership, management and and external learning experiences through mentoring
communication skills, with the opportunity to travel opportunities within the national Farm Credit System.
nationally and internationally.
David Lynn, senior vice president – financial services,
Aaron Miller, regional vice president, Farm Credit in Farm Credit, serves as the program’s relationship mancentral Kentucky, and a part-time beef producer, gradu- ager. “We are structuring this program to be very open.
ated from KALP in 2011. “The program taught me the The majority of scholars may come from the agricultural
power of networking. Most of the others in my class were economics and agricultural business curricula, but we
young ag leaders, and the strong bonds we’ve built will want the program to be available to other exceptional
continue for many years,” he says. “I learned a lot about students in the college,” says Lynn. “We’re looking for
managing people, which helps me on the job every day. the brightest and most exceptional students across all
I also realize how important it is to be an advocate for segments of agriculture. We want these scholars to
agriculture at all times.”
become valuable contributors to their communities and
to agriculture.”
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risk management

Acres insured by FCS throughout Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky and Tennessee.
At Farm Credit, we have a team
of more than 30 crop insurance
specialists and technicians who
insured more than 1.5 million
acres in 2011. In January 2012,
Farm Credit introduced the
Enterprise Plus program and is
planning on insuring even more.

12.6%

increase in acres insured

52.7%

increase in acres insured for crop hail

78.6%

increase in insurance premiums

60.6%

increase in crop hail insurance premiums

Kirk scott, crop insurance specialist at Farm Credit (on
right) provides on-farm service to Charles Schulze,
Waynesfield, Ohio, (on left) to help Charles get the best,

Crop insurance specialists are
dedicated to our customers seven
days a week, 365 days a year.
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most economical coverage, not only for his entire farm,
but also for each individual field.

FarmFarm
credit
credit
services
services
of mid-america,
of mid-america
ACA 15

Helping farmers reap what they grow

“It makes me feel secure knowing my fields are protected.”
What is the outlook for commodity markets and input
costs? How will prices and politics impact 2012 Farm
Bill talks? How will the global economy, ag commodity
futures market and other market forces influence the
farm economy? Will there be too much, or not enough,
rainfall this season?
The Farm Credit Services of Mid-America team of more
than 30 crop insurance specialists and technicians
address these issues every day. In 2011, Farm Credit
insured more than 1.5 million acres throughout Indiana,
Ohio, Kentucky and Tennessee, helping customers manage risk by offering crop insurance products that deliver
exceptional coverage tailored to the needs of individual
operations.
Charles Schulze, who farms near Waynesfield, Ohio, has
been a Farm Credit crop insurance customer for 10 years.
He insures his corn and soybean acreage with a Revenue
Protection enterprise unit policy, which fits well with his
business goals. “Having crop insurance with Farm Credit
16 2011 Annual report

helps me sleep at night, because I know that at the end of
the year, I’ll have enough to pay bills and keep my business moving forward,” he says. “It makes me feel secure
knowing my fields are protected.”
In January 2012, Farm Credit introduced a new way to
increase value to customers: the Enterprise Plus program. Developed by Farm Credit partner 1st Farm Credit
Services, Enterprise Plus allows farmers to place additional endorsements on their enterprise unit policies
for corn and soybeans, so each unit is also insured individually. Enterprise Plus protection means increased
potential for claim payments based on individual yields,
regardless of how the overall operation performs.
“Growers liked the option of receiving discounts on crop
insurance with enterprise units, but many had individual
fields with variable soil types or low yields because of less
favorable weather conditions. As a result, they were not
getting optimal protection on those fields,” says Tom Sloma,
assistant vice president – crop insurance, Farm Credit.

we ’ ve got you covered

enterprise plus

“Our objective is to provide outstanding customer service to
our growers within the cooperative and to get them the
best value possible for their
investment with us, whether
it’s the best interest rates in
the marketplace or the best
crop insurance products.”
— Tom Sloma

Crop insurance specialists and technicians

“Enterprise Plus lets us give a grower
the best, most economical coverage, not
only for the entire farm, but for individual fields. Growers liked the option
of receiving discounts on crop insurance with enterprise units, but many
had individual fields with variable soil

— Charles Schulze

“Enterprise Plus lets us give a grower
the best, most economical coverage,
not only for the entire farm, but for
individual fields.”
Seven states are now authorized to
offer the Enterprise Plus program.
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America
is approved to administer the program in Indiana and Ohio.
“Our objective is to provide outstanding customer service to our growers
within the cooperative and to get
them the best value possible for their
investment with us, whether it’s the
best interest rates in the marketplace
or the best crop insurance products,”
says Sloma.

types or low yields because of less favorable weather conditions.“ — Tom Sloma
Enterprise plus insures each field individually so
the grower is eligible for claim payments on lower
producing units regardless of overall average.
2011

field a

field b

field c

field d

acres

200

160

120

80

aph

180

185

175

200

enterprise
plus guarantee

$810

$832.5

$787.5

$900

actual yield

170

180

135

215

actual revenue

$935

$990

$742.5

$1,182.5

claim per acre

$0

$0

$45

$0
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“It’s become a way of life for us, and we enjoy being here.
Ruby and Beecher Hines each grew up in a farm family,
and time has only made their love of the lifestyle stronger.
After meeting in college, Ruby and Beecher married and
purchased their first farm near Cynthiana, Kentucky, in
1976. They raised two sons and a daughter there and still
live on the farm, while the three children own their own
farms, all within 5 miles of the home farm.

Today, both their farms — the 72 acres where they live
and run a beef cattle and hay production operation, and
another 200-acre property — carry mortgages through
Farm Credit. In addition, all three of the Hines’ children
have loans with Farm Credit.

In 2011, Ruby and Beecher received a call from Farm
Credit offering the opportunity to convert their loan and
“Having space around us has always been important,” reduce the interest rate on both properties.
says Ruby. “Beecher and I saw that farming was a good
lifestyle — having some acreage and room to stretch. Our “Our ultimate goal is to get our members the lowest
kids could have gone to cities, but they preferred to stay interest rate available,” says Adam Loy, financial services
and farm, too.”
officer at the Lexington, Kentucky office. “As a cooperative, we put our members first.” The Farm Credit loan
conversion program is in its eleventh year.
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loan conversions help generations of farmers
th e hin es fa mily fa rm s

Number of years the Hines family has been
doing business with Farm Credit, making them
a member of our Heritage Farm Program.

In 2011, Ruby and Beecher Hines received
a call from Farm Credit offering the opportunity to convert their loan and reduce
the interest rate on both properties.

percent
Average interest rate for a
10-year fixed rate mortgage loan.

“I love calling customers and offering them a
lower interest rate, especially with the difficult economy.” — Tammy Pugh

Farming is something our family can do together.” — Ruby Hines
In 2011, nearly 24,000 Farm Credit Services loans in
Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky and Tennessee were a part of
the program. More than $4 billion in loans were affected,
with an average savings of 0.75 percent per customer.
Estimated customer savings will total $92 million over
the next three years.

In addition to saving customers money, converting a loan
is simple, typically requiring only two pieces of paper.
“We amend the note — that’s all,” says Loy. “It’s a seamless
process.”

“The lower interest rates have made it so we can keep living on and operating our farm,” says Ruby. “It’s become
“The new interest rates are wonderful — the best we’ve a way of life for us, and we enjoy being here. Farming is
ever had,” says Beecher. Their children also signed loan something our family can do together.” Ruby and Beecher
conversions with Farm Credit.
have eight grandchildren, three of them college age, with
another starting college in the fall.
“I love calling customers and offering them a lower interest rate, especially with the difficult economy,” says “Farming is a lifestyle you grow accustomed to,” says
Tammy Pugh, customer service representative at the Beecher. “Even if we didn’t farm, I would still want to be
Lexington, Kentucky office. “They are excited and very in this environment.”
appreciative.”
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the loan conversion program

$

Beecher Hines (right front) grew up
on a farm, raised his children on a
farm (like Doug, back left) and has
been able to watch his grandchildren,
(like Lena, back right) grow up the
same way. As a longtime Farm Credit
member, Beecher and his extended

Dollar amount of loans converted
to a lower interest rate in 2011.

family have all worked closely
with Adam Loy (front left), financial

As a cooperative, it’s always been Farm Credit

services officer at the lexington,

Services’ ultimate goal to get the lowest possible

Kentucky Farm Credit office, to get

interest rate for our customers. For 11 years, the

the rates they need. For the Hines

Farm Credit Loan Conversion Program has offered

family — and Farm Credit employees

customers a simple way to redo higher-rate loans

— farming is more than a job. It’s a

to take advantage of lower rates.

0.75

%

average conversion
savings per customer
in 2011
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way of life that crosses generations.

farm credit loan
conversion

Loans were adjusted in 2011.

Savings estimated
over the next three years.
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*Appointed Directors
**On March 5, 2012 FCS Director Ernie Diggs (Tennessee) was elected to the AgriBank
Board of Directors. The FCS Board will address filling his vacancy at a future meeting.

Financial highlights
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Loans

$15,010,650

(dollars in thousands)

2011
2010
2009

Total Assets

$17,505,272
(dollars in thousands)

2011
2010
2009

Net Income

$278,591

(dollars in thousands)

2011
2010
2009

Return on Average Assets

1.7%

2011
2010
2009
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F i n a n c i a l ov e r v i e w

Consolidated Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data
2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

2008

2007

$15,010,650
80,734
14,929,916
422,124
1,410,903
30,309
712,020
$17,505,272
$14,790,190
2,317
14,792,507
—
82,000
2,630,765
2,712,765
$17,505,272

$14,088,862
125,787
13,963,075
416,714
1,263,985
23,907
775,089
$16,442,770
$14,008,073
2,558
14,010,631
8
79,957
2,352,174
2,432,139
$16,442,770

$13,053,455
64,453
12,989,002
411,986
1,055,803
12,887
788,379
$15,258,057
$13,039,148
2,761
13,041,909
9
77,917
2,138,222
2,216,148
$15,258,057

$12,013,166
32,571
11,980,595
405,524
786,302
4,325
753,289
$13,930,035
$11,854,502
2,936
11,857,438
11
76,035
1,996,551
2,072,597
$13,930,035

$11,850,441
17,775
11,832,666
270,463
483,874
1,411
756,730
$13,345,144
$11,434,553
3,291
11,437,844
13
72,778
1,834,509
1,907,300
$13,345,144

$316,475
(10,416)
61,748
95,988
14,060
$278,591

$304,478
95,084
78,909
60,423
13,928
$213,952

$256,305
62,668
57,817
102,481
7,302
$141,671

$232,368
18,046
45,002
89,864
7,418
$162,042

$220,524
1,917
34,436
86,285
8,817
$157,941

1.7%
10.9%
2.0%
15.5%
0.2%
0.5%
14.8%
14.2%
14.2%

1.4%
9.2%
2.1%
14.8%
0.3%
0.9%
14.0%
13.5%
13.5%

1.0%
6.6%
1.9%
14.5%
0.3%
0.5%
13.1%
12.6%
12.6%

1.2%
8.1%
1.8%
14.9%
—
0.3%
13.3%
12.7%
12.7%

1.3%
8.7%
1.9%
14.3%
—
0.2%
13.3%
12.7%
12.7%

( d o l l a r s i n t h o u s a n d s)

Statement of condition data

Loans
Allowance for loan losses
Net loans
Investment in AgriBank, FCB
Investment securities
Other property owned
Other assets
Total assets
Obligations with maturities of one year or less
Obligations with maturities greater than one year
Total liabilities
Protected members’ equity
Capital stock and participation certificates
Unallocated surplus
Total members' equity
Total liabilities and members' equity
Statement of income data

Net interest income
(Reversal of) provision for loan losses
Patronage income
Other expense, net
Provision for income taxes
Net income
kEy financial ratios

Return on average assets
Return on average members’ equity
Net interest income as a percentage of average earning assets
Members’ equity as a percentage of assets
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of loans
Permanent capital ratio
Total surplus ratio
Core surplus ratio

No income was distributed to members in the form of cash patronage, dividends, stock or allocated surplus during the five years presented.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
The following commentary reviews the consolidated financial
position and consolidated results of operations of Farm Credit
Services of Mid-America, ACA and its subsidiaries and provides
additional specific information. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements and notes also contain important information
about our financial position and results of operations.

term business is also up, but at a lesser rate than real estate. The
driver on the commercial side has been machinery, grain bins and
facility type loans while the Association experienced a decline
in overall operating loan levels. In Agribusiness, the reduction
is primarily due to less operating borrowing needs due to strong
profits and greater liquidity.

Forward-Looking Information

Based on additional analysis performed during the year, we
determined certain instruments originated under our mission related investment authority and previously classified
as investment securities had characteristics more closely
aligned with that of loans. As such, we reclassified $35.0 million,
$34.9 million, and $29.9 million of these instruments for the
periods ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
The effects of the change in presentation are not material to the
consolidated financial statements.

This Annual Report includes forward-looking statements. These
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
certain risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to
predict. Words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “could,” “estimate,”
“may,” “should,” “will,” “expect,” or other variations on these terms
are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These
statements are based on assumptions and analyses made in light
of experience, historical trends, current conditions, and expected
future developments. However, actual results and developments
may differ materially from our expectations and predictions
due to a number of risks and uncertainties; many of which are
beyond our control. These risks and uncertainties include, but
are not limited to:
• political, legal, regulatory, and economic conditions and developments in the United States and abroad,
• economic fluctuations in the agricultural, energy, financing,
and leasing sectors,
• economic conditions and credit performance of our loan portfolio, portfolio growth and seasonal factors,
• changes in our estimates underlying the allowance for loan
losses,
• weather-related, disease, and other adverse climatic or
biological conditions that periodically occur that impact
agricultural productivity and income,
• changes in U.S. government support of the agricultural industry and the Farm Credit System (the System) as a governmentsponsored enterprise, as well as investor and rating agency
actions relating to events involving the U.S. government, other
government-sponsored enterprises and other financial institutions, and
• actions taken by the Federal Reserve System in implementing
monetary policy.

As part of a separately maintained pool, we sold participation
interests in real estate loans to AgriBank, FCB (AgriBank) in 2008.
The total participation interests in this pool were $840.8 million,
$1.0 billion, and $1.2 billion at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

Portfolio Distribution
geographical distribution
(as of December 31, 2011)

agricultural commodities

Loan Portfolio

Total loans were $15.0 billion at December 31, 2011, an increase of
$921.8 million from December 31, 2010. The components of total
loans for the prior three years are outlined in the following table
(in thousands):
a s o f D ece m b e r 31

Real estate mortgage
Production and
intermediate term
Agribusiness
Rural residential real estate
Finance leases
Other
Non-accrual
Total loans

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$9,833,770

$8,982,719

$8,267,710

2,794,943
736,243
1,003,519
280,361
75,328
286,486
$15,010,650

2,619,882
839,843
1,024,374
293,060
53,093
275,891
$14,088,862

2,430,653
781,069
1,055,961
258,771
44,612
214,679
$13,053,455

The increase in loan volume came primarily from the strength in
real estate loans due to the active farm real estate market. Strong
farm income increased the demand and price of agricultural tracts
fueling our mortgage loan business. Production and intermediate

25.5%
24.1%
25.5%
25.5%
20.6%
24.1%
24.1%
16.5%
20.6%
20.6%
13.3%
16.5%
16.5%
13.3%
13.3%

Indiana
Ohio
Indiana
Indiana
Tennessee
Ohio
Ohio
Kentucky
Tennessee
Tennessee
Other
Kentucky
Kentucky
Other
Other

26.8%
18.4%
26.8%
26.8%
15.4%
18.4%
18.4%
12.9%
15.4%
15.4%
06.9%
12.9%
12.9%
04.6%
06.9%
06.9%
04.3%
04.6%
04.6%
04.1%
04.3%
04.3%
03.3%
04.1%
04.1%
03.3%
03.3%
03.3%
03.3%
03.3%

Corn/Soybean
Other Crops
Corn/Soybean
Corn/Soybean
Real Estate
Other Crops
Other Crops
Cattle
Real Estate
Real Estate
Other
Livestock
Cattle
Cattle
Other
Other Livestock
Other Livestock
Dairy
Other
Other
Timber
Dairy
Dairy and Eggs
Poultry
Timber
Processing/Marketing
Timber
Poultry and Eggs
Poultry and Eggs
Processing/Marketing
Processing/Marketing

interest rate
49.5% Fixed over 10 yrs.
23.0%
49.5% Fixed
Fixed 2-5
overyrs.
10 or
yrs.less
49.5% Fixed over 10 yrs.
18.9%
Variable
23.0% Fixed 2-5 yrs. or less
23.0% Fixed 2-5 yrs. or less
04.6% Variable
Fixed 6-10 yrs.
18.9%
18.9% Variable
04.0% Fixed
Fixed 6-10
1 yr. or
less
04.6%
yrs.
04.6% Fixed 6-10 yrs.
04.0% Fixed 1 yr. or less
04.0% Fixed 1 yr. or less
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We offer variable and fixed loan and lease programs as well as
indexed, capped, and adjustable interest rate loan programs to
our borrowers. We determine interest margins charged on each
lending program based on cost of funds, market conditions, and
the need to generate sufficient earnings.

Agricultural and Economic Conditions

While residential and commercial land values have decreased
over the last four years, agricultural land values escaped the
declines that other assets suffered during the recession and in
some areas have significantly increased in value. This is largely
because the agricultural sector, particularly crop production,
remained profitable throughout the economic crisis period. Major
agricultural lenders such as the Farm Credit System retained the
ability to continue lending for land purchases, unlike lenders to
industrial or consumer sectors. In order to retain the capacity
to lend in poor economic environments as well as good ones, our
credit risk policies emphasize loan repayment capacity in addition to conservative assessments of collateral values that secure
loans. As a result, our loan underwriting standards cause us to
be conservative when evaluating collateral where land values
are rapidly increasing.
The U.S. economy continued to grow slowly and its future growth
is under real or perceived threat from other world economies,
especially Europe. Unemployment remained historically high
through 2011 and continues to provide headwinds to the recovery, although there has been limited growth in employment the
last half of 2011. We expect the economy to continue its slow but
positive growth through 2012.
The agricultural income situation improved in 2011. Net Cash Farm
Income is forecasted by U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) at
a record $114.8 billion, 24% higher than 2010, and over 50% higher
than the past 10 year average. Both cash crop and livestock receipts
were significantly higher in 2011 versus the previous year. USDA
has not developed Net Cash Farm Income projections for 2012,
but they anticipate income will be lower. The balance sheets of
farmers continued to improve. Based on USDA, farm sector debt
to equity is forecasted to be 11.6% at year-end 2011 versus 12.8%
and 13.3% in 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Profits above historical norms have continued to drive prices paid
for crop land higher, creating a concern as to the sustainability of
current price levels. We have implemented processes to monitor
and control this potential risk.
Lack of activity in the residential sector of the U.S. economy has
negatively impacted the timber and nursery segments of our
portfolio. Also, the broiler industry is working through a period
of oversupply and losses which has some negative impact on our
portfolio.
Still, the largest commodity concentration in our portfolio is with
grain farmers. While net income per acre may be less in the future
than in 2011 and other potential risks may be ahead, this segment
has had several consecutive years of positive income. Profitable
operations are expected to continue for this sector of our portfolio.

Analysis of Risk

The following table summarizes risk assets (accruing volume
includes accrued interest receivable) and delinquency information (in thousands):
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a s o f D ece m b e r 31

Loans:
Accruing restructured
Accruing loans 90 days
or more past due
Non-accrual
Total risk loans
Other property owned
Total risk assets
Non-accrual loans as
percentage of total loans
Risk loans as a percentage
of total loans
Total delinquencies as a
percentage of total loans

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$10,222

$10,150

$578

714
286,486
297,422
30,309
$327,731

1,318
275,891
287,359
23,907
$311,266

1,700
214,679
216,957
12,887
$229,844

1.9%

1.9%

1.6%

2.0%

2.0%

1.7%

1.4%

1.6%

1.6%

The decrease in accruing loans 90 days or more past due was primarily due to two loans which paid off during the year. Based on
our analysis, all loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing
interest were adequately secured and in the process of collection
and, as such, were eligible to remain in accruing status.
Non-earning assets increased 5.7% during 2011. Non-earning
assets consist of non-accrual loans and other property owned.
The main source of these non-earning assets was smaller loans
to customers primarily dependent on non-farm income to service
their debt. Job losses or reduced income resulted in customers’
inability to continue to meet debt obligations.
At December 31, 2011, 50.5% of our non-accrual loans were current.

Portfolio Credit Quality

After three years of declining credit quality, our trend reversed.
The level of adversely classified volume decreased from 4.2%
of the portfolio at December 31, 2010, to 3.9% of the portfolio at
December 31, 2011. The improvement resulted from resolution
and improvement in our customers’ financial situations as well
as continued loan growth. Adversely classified assets are assets
identified as showing credit weaknesses that affect the customers’ ability to make scheduled payments. We have considered
portfolio credit quality in assessing the reasonableness of our
allowance for loan losses.

Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of losses on loans in
our portfolio as of the financial statement date. We determine the
appropriate level of allowance for loan losses based on the periodic
evaluation of factors such as loan loss history, portfolio quality,
and current economic and environmental conditions.
Comparative allowance coverage of various loan categories follows:
a s o f D ece m b e r 31

Allowance as a percentage of:
Loans
Non-accrual loans
Total risk loans
Net charge-offs as a percentage
of average loans
Adverse assets to risk funds

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

0.5%
28.2%
27.1%

0.9%
45.6%
43.8%

0.5%
30.0%
29.7%

0.2%
26.4%

0.3%
29.4%

0.3%
25.4%

We recorded a reversal of provision during 2011 of $10.4 million.
This reversal was primarily due to an enhancement to our allowance methodology that incorporated the strong collateralization
of our agricultural mortgage portfolio, as well as slight improvement in overall environmental factors related to our residential
mortgage portfolio, and more positive credit quality. In our opinion,
the allowance for loan losses was reasonable in relation to the
probable losses in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2011.

The following table summarizes the changes in components of
net income (in thousands):
i ncr e a se (d ecr e a se) i n n e t i nco m e

2 01 1 v s . 2 01 0

2 01 0 v s . 2 0 0 9

$11,997
105,500
(17,161)
(24,306)
(11,259)
(132)

$48,173
(32,416)
21,092
28,918
13,140
(6,626)

$64,639

$72,281

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Patronage income
Non-interest income
Non-interest expense
Provision for income taxes

Additional loan information is included in Notes 3, 12, 13, and 14. Total change in net income

Investment Securities and Other Earning Assets

In addition to loans, we hold investment securities and other earning assets. Investments represent our share of securities made up
of a portion of loans guaranteed by various federal governmental
agencies. The securities have been classified as held-to-maturity.
Investment securities totaled $1.4 billion, $1.3 billion, and
$1.1 billion at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
The investment portfolio is evaluated for other-than-temporary
impairment. To date, we have not recognized any impairment on
our investment portfolio.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income was $316.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The following table quantifies changes in
net interest income (in thousands):
Changes in net interest income due to:

2 01 1 v s . 2 01 0

2 01 0 v s . 2 0 0 9

$23,265
(12,759)
1,491
$11,997

$11,588
38,254
(1,669)
$48,173

Changes in volume
Changes in rates
Changes in non-accrual income and other
Net change

Net interest income included income on non-accrual loans that
totaled $9.7 million, $4.7 million, and $5.3 million in 2011, 2010,
Based on additional analysis performed during the year, we deter- and 2009, respectively. Non-accrual income is recognized when:
mined certain instruments originated under our mission related • received in cash,
investment authority and previously classified as investment • collection of the recorded investment is fully expected, and
securities had characteristics more closely aligned with that • prior charge-offs have been recovered.
of loans. As such, we reclassified $35.0 million, $34.9 million,
and $29.9 million of these instruments for the periods ended Changes in rates were due to the low interest rate environment and
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. The effects of the rate reduction in February 2011 for all direct loans. Net interthe change in presentation are not material to the consolidated est margin (net interest income divided by average earning assets)
financial statements.
was 2.0%, 2.1%, and 1.9% in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Other earning assets result from successor-in-interest contracts
from our involvement with the federal government’s tobacco buyout program. The volume was $210.9 million, $272.0 million, and
$321.1 million at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
These amounts include both principal and interest income receivable. These investments align well with our mission and strategies; however, because of limited value to the customer, as only
two program payments remain, we discontinued the purchase of
additional contracts during 2011.
Additional investment securities information is included in Notes
5 and 14.

Results of Operations

The following table illustrates profitability information
(in thousands):
F OR THE YEAR ENDED D e c e m b e r 3 1

Net income
Return on average assets

Return on average members’ equity

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$278,591
1.7%

$213,952
1.4%

$141,671
1.0%

10.9%

9.2%

6.6%

Changes in these ratios relate directly to:
• changes in income as discussed below,
• changes in assets as discussed in the Loan Portfolio and
Investment Securities and Other Earning Assets sections, and
• changes in members’ equity as discussed in the Capital
Adequacy section.

Provision for Loan Losses

Based on our analysis of factors such as loan loss history, portfolio quality, and current economic and environmental conditions,
provision for loan loss was $95.1 million and $62.7 million in 2010
and 2009, respectively. We recorded a reversal of provision during 2011 of $10.4 million. This reversal was primarily due to an
enhancement to our allowance methodology that incorporated
the strong collateralization of our agricultural mortgage portfolio,
as well as slight improvement in overall environmental factors
related to our residential mortgage portfolio, and more positive
credit quality.

Patronage Income

We received patronage income based on the average balance of our
note payable to AgriBank. AgriBank’s Board of Directors sets the
patronage rate. We recorded patronage income of $42.7 million,
$54.4 million, and $36.1 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Changes in our note payable to AgriBank and patronage rate
changes caused the variances in the patronage income amounts.
The patronage rates paid by AgriBank were 31 basis points, 42 basis
points, and 30 basis points in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
We also received patronage income related to our sale of participation interests in certain real estate loans to AgriBank. We
received patronage income in an amount that approximated the net
earnings of those loans. Net earnings represents the net interest
income associated with these loans adjusted for certain fees and
costs specific to the related loans as well as adjustments deemed
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appropriate by AgriBank related to the credit performance of the
loans, as applicable. Patronage income also included an amount
that approximated the wholesale patronage had we retained the
volume. Patronage declared on these pools is solely at the discretion of the AgriBank Board of Directors. We recorded asset pool
patronage income of $19.0 million, $24.5 million, and $21.7 million
in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Funding and Liquidity

U.S. Fiscal Situation and Credit Rating Impact

The Farm Credit System is a government-sponsored enterprise
that has benefited from broad access to domestic and global capital markets. This access has provided us with a dependable source
of competitively priced debt which is critical for supporting our
mission of providing credit to agriculture and rural America. The
2011 U.S. Congressional negotiations aimed at raising the governNon-Interest Income
ment’s debt ceiling and addressing long-term budget imbalances
The change in non-interest income is primarily due to the following: highlighted the risks to the Farm Credit System relating to the
U.S. fiscal situation. These risks include the apparent implied
The decrease in allocated insurance reserve account (AIRA) dis- link between the credit rating of the Farm Credit System and
tribution is due to our share of distributions from AIRA of $14.9 the U.S. government given the System’s status as a governmentmillion during the first quarter of 2010. These reserve accounts sponsored enterprise.
were established in previous years by the Farm Credit System
Insurance Corporation when premiums collected increased the Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch confirmed the AAA rating of
level of the Insurance Fund beyond the required 2% of insured U.S. government bonds and financial institutions directly linked
debt. There was no distribution in 2011 or 2009.
to the U.S. government, including debt issued by the Farm Credit
System, following the raising of the statutory debt limit in August
The decrease in fee income of $5.2 million is due to fewer loan 2011. The rating outlook was revised to negative by Moody’s and
conversions in 2011 than in 2010.
remained stable from Fitch. However, Standard and Poor’s Rating
Services lowered the U.S. government rating to AA+ in August
The decrease in financially related services income of $1.7 million 2011 with an outlook of negative, followed with a similar change
is primarily due to the discontinuation of life insurance sales in for the Farm Credit System. In November 2011, Fitch changed
the second half of 2010. In addition, the Standard Reinsurance its outlook of the U.S. and the Farm Credit System from stable
Agreement (SRA) from the USDA was renegotiated during 2011 in to negative. The impact of current and future downgrades may
an effort to reduce USDA budgetary expense for crop insurance. increase our borrowing costs and may limit Farm Credit System
This renegotiation resulted in an agency earnings cap on crop access to the capital markets, reducing flexibility to issue debt
insurance ultimately contributing to the decrease in financially across the full spectrum of the yield curve. The downgrades have
related services income.
not had a significant impact on our borrowing costs and access to
capital markets. The downgrades also did not impact AgriBank’s
The increase in other property owned losses, net of $3.2 million standalone credit rating.
is primarily due to increased write-downs of properties owned in
Georgia and Tennessee during 2011 as compared to 2010.
Funding
We borrow from AgriBank under a note payable, in the form of
Non-Interest Expense
a line of credit, as described in Note 7. During 2011, our average
The following presents a comparison of operating expense by major balance was $13.8 billion with an average interest rate of 2.7%.
category and the operating rate (operating expense as a percentage Our average balance during 2010 was $12.9 billion with an averof average earning assets) for the past three years (in thousands): age interest rate of 3.3% and during 2009 our average balance
Fo r t h e y e a r e n d e d D ece m b e r 31
2 01 1
2 01 0
2009
was $12.1 billion with an average interest rate of 3.8%. Our other
Salaries and benefits
$72,879
$68,883
$61,051 source of lendable funds is from unallocated surplus.
Purchased and vendor services
Communications
Occupancy and equipment
Advertising and promotion
Examination
Farm Credit System insurance
Other
Total operating expense
Operating rate

7,369
2,020
11,087
8,568
2,775
8,079
10,009
$122,786
0.8%

6,334
1,963
9,313
6,866
2,564
6,715
8,889
$111,527
0.8%

8,241
2,031
9,376
7,071
2,456
25,941
8,500
$124,667
0.9%

The repricing attributes of our line of credit generally correspond
to the repricing attributes of our loan portfolio which significantly
reduces our interest rate risk.

Liquidity

Our approach to sustaining sufficient liquidity to fund operations
and meet current obligations is to maintain an adequate line of
credit with AgriBank. At December 31, 2011, we had $1.4 billion
available under our line of credit. We generally apply excess cash
to this line of credit.

The non-interest expense increases were primarily related to
increased headcount in 2011 compared to 2010. Additionally,
increased technology equipment spending and higher advertis- Capital Adequacy
ing, promotions, public relations, and marketing also contributed Total members’ equity increased $280.6 million during 2011 prito an increase in non-interest expense compared to 2010.
marily due to net income for the period and a slight increase in
capital stock and participation certificates outstanding.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded tax expense of $14.1 million, $13.9 million, and $7.3
million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009,
respectively. See Note 9 for additional discussion.
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Members’ equity position information is as follows (in thousands):
A s o f D ece m b e r 31

Members’ equity
Surplus as a percentage of
members’ equity
Permanent capital ratio
Total surplus ratio
Core surplus ratio

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$2,712,765

$2,432,139

$2,216,148

97.0%
14.8%
14.2%
14.2%

96.7%
14.0%
13.5%
13.5%

96.5%
13.1%
12.6%
12.6%

Crop Insurance

We continue to invest in growing our crop insurance business, with
focus on growth of acres insured in order to provide exceptional
risk management tools and expand our customer relationships.
The investments are focused on hiring and training the crop insurance delivery team to provide expert information and unbiased
direction about the products, as we do not operate on a commission
basis as most independent agents do.

Our capital plan is designed to maintain an adequate amount of
surplus and allowance for loan losses which represents our reserve
for adversity prior to impairment of stock. We manage our capital
to allow us to meet member needs and protect member interests,
both now and in the future.

Continuous Improvement

In addition to these regulatory requirements, we establish an optimum permanent capital target. This target allows us to maintain
a capital base adequate for future growth and investment in new
products and services. The target is subject to revision as circumstances change. As of December 31, 2011, our optimum permanent
capital target was 15%.

Throughout 2011, the human resources department and crossfunctional teams worked to improve our efforts to recruit, retain,
and reward employees by redesigning the employee compensation
program for 2012. In addition, we focused efforts on increased
staffing in order to meet marketplace demands, improve customer service, and prepare for planned retirements in the next
three to five years.

In order to review all our processes in serving customers, we
implemented a Lean/Six Sigma methodology that we call the
Continuous Improvement Process. The process identified weaknesses and inefficiencies in serving customers and provided vision
to how all processes and technology systems work together in the
At December 31, 2011, our permanent capital, total surplus, and Association. The initiative continues to provide regularly schedcore surplus ratios significantly exceeded the regulatory mini- uled improvements to the customer and employee experience in
mum requirements. See Note 8 for further discussions of these selling and servicing our loan portfolio.
regulatory ratios.

The changes in our capital ratios reflect changes in capital and
assets. Refer to the Loan Portfolio and Investment Securities
and Other Earning Assets sections for further discussion of the
changes in assets. Additional members’ equity information is
included in Note 8.

Initiatives

Several initiatives were in place in 2011 designed to improve the
credit delivery, related services and marketplace presence of the
Association. These included, but were not limited to:
• Cross-selling
• Agnition
• Crop Insurance
• Continuous Improvement
• Human Capital Investment

Cross-selling

Human Capital Investment

Relationship with AgriBank

Borrowings

We borrow from AgriBank to fund our lending operations in
accordance with the Farm Credit Act. Approval from AgriBank
is required for us to borrow elsewhere. A General Financing
Agreement, as discussed in Note 7, governs this lending relationship.
Cost of funds under the General Financing Agreement includes:
• a marginal cost of debt component,
• a spread component, which includes cost of servicing, cost of
liquidity and bank profit, and
• a risk premium component, if applicable.
The marginal cost of debt approach simulates match funding the
cost of underlying debt with substantially the same terms as the
anticipated terms of our loans to borrowers. This methodology
substantially protects us from interest rate risk.

In an effort to expand our wallet-share with current customers
and improve customer service as well, we set cross-selling goals
for each product line and incorporated those goals into the sales In the periods presented, we were not subject to the risk prereward program as well as the performance management system. mium component.
Products measured for increased cross-selling included all loans,
leases, and crop insurance, as well as Farm Cash Management, PAID Investment
program, operating loan disbursement card, and online banking. We are required to invest in AgriBank capital stock as a condition
of borrowing. This investment may be in the form of purchased
Agnition
stock or stock representing previously distributed AgriBank
Agnition is our branded trade credit program. We have agreements surplus. As of December 31, 2011, we were required to maintain a
with farm equipment dealers across the four-state service area in stock investment equal to 2.5% of the average quarterly balance
order to provide an alternative point of sale financing option. This of our note payable to AgriBank plus an additional 1% on growth
program continues to increase the Association’s market share in that exceeded a targeted rate. AgriBank’s current bylaws allow
equipment financing, as well as increase overall business through AgriBank to increase the required investment to 4%.
cross-selling to new Agnition customers.
In addition, we are required to hold AgriBank stock equal to
8% of the quarter-end balance of a pool of real estate loans sold
to AgriBank.
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At December 31, 2011, $276.7 million of our investment in AgriBank
consisted of stock representing distributed AgriBank surplus and
$145.4 million consisted of purchased investment. For the periods
presented in this report, we have received no dividend income on
this stock investment and we do not anticipate any in future years.

Patronage

Effect on Members’ Investment

Due to the nature of our financial relationship with AgriBank,
the financial condition and results of operations of AgriBank
materially affect our members’ investment. To request a free copy
of the AgriBank and the combined AgriBank, FCB and Affiliated
Associations’ financial reports contact us at:

We receive different types of discretionary patronage from
AgriBank. AgriBank’s Board of Directors sets the level of patronage for each of the following:
• our note payable with AgriBank and
• the balance and net earnings of the pool of loans sold to AgriBank.

Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA
P.O. Box 34390
Louisville, KY, 40232
(800) 444-FARM
www.e-farmcredit.com

Beginning in 2009, patronage income on our note payable with
AgriBank was received in the form of cash and AgriBank stock.

Or contact AgriBank at:

Purchased Services

We purchase various services from AgriBank including certain:
• information systems,
• financial services,
• accounting and reporting services,
• human resource services, and
• retail product processing and support.
The total cost of services we purchased from AgriBank was
$5.1 million, $4.8 million, and $5.1 million in 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively.
We purchase benefit and payroll services from Farm Credit
Foundations. Farm Credit Foundations operated as a part of
AgriBank prior to January 1, 2012, when it formed a service
corporation and is no longer part of AgriBank. The Farm Credit
System entities using Farm Credit Foundations as their payroll
and benefits provider contributed an investment into the service
corporation in January 2012. Our investment was $113 thousand.
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AgriBank, FCB
30 East 7th Street, Suite 1600
St. Paul, MN 55101
(651) 282-8800
www.agribank.com
To request a free copy of our annual or quarterly reports, contact
us as stated above. The annual report is available on our website
75 days after the end of the calendar year and members are provided a copy of such report 90 days after the end of the year. The
quarterly reports are available on our website 40 days after the
end of each calendar quarter.

Report of Management
We prepare the consolidated financial statements of Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA (the Association) and are responsible for their integrity and objectivity, including amounts that must necessarily be based on judgments and estimates. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. The consolidated financial statements, in our opinion, fairly present the financial condition of the Association. Other
financial information included in the annual report is consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.
To meet our responsibility for reliable financial information, we depend on accounting and internal control systems designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly authorized and recorded. Costs
must be reasonable in relation to the benefits derived when designing accounting and internal control systems. Financial operations
audits are performed to monitor compliance. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent auditors, audit the consolidated financial statements. They also conduct a review of internal controls to the extent necessary to comply with generally accepted auditing
standards in the United States of America. The Farm Credit Administration also performs examinations for safety and soundness
as well as compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for our system of internal control and financial reporting. The Board of Directors
and its Audit Committee consults regularly with us and meets periodically with the independent auditors and other auditors to review
the scope and results of their work. The independent auditors have direct access to the Board of Directors, which is composed solely
of directors who are not officers or employees of the Association.
The undersigned certify we have reviewed the Association’s annual report and it has been prepared in accordance with all applicable statutory or regulatory requirements and the information contained herein is true, accurate, and complete to the best of our
knowledge and belief.

George Stebbins						William L. Johnson
Chair of the Board						
Chief Executive Officer
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA			
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA

Paul Bruce
Chief Financial Officer
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA
March 15, 2012
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA (the Association) principal executives and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for
the Association’s consolidated financial statements. For purposes of this report, “internal control over financial reporting” is defined
as a process designed by, or under the supervision of the Association’s principal executives and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, and effected by its Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting information and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes those
policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Association, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the Association, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Association’s assets that could have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
The Association’s management has completed an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011. In making the assessment, management used the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, promulgated by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, commonly referred to as the “COSO” criteria.
Based on the assessment performed, the Association concluded that as of December 31, 2011, the internal control over financial reporting was effective based upon the COSO criteria. Additionally, based on this assessment, the Association determined that there were
no material weaknesses in the internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011.

William L. Johnson
Chief Executive Officer
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA

Paul Bruce
Chief Financial Officer
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA
March 15, 2012
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Report of Audit Committee
The consolidated financial statements were prepared under the oversight of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is composed
of five members of the Board of Directors of Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA (the Association). The Audit Committee oversees the scope of the Association’s internal audit program, the approval and independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as
independent auditors, the adequacy of the Association’s system of internal controls and procedures, and the adequacy of management’s action with respect to recommendations arising from those auditing activities. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities are
described more fully in the Internal Control Policy and the Audit Committee Charter.
Management is responsible for internal controls and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. PwC is responsible for performing an independent audit of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America and
to issue their report based on their audit. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include monitoring and overseeing these processes.
In this context, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2011, with management. The Audit Committee also reviewed with PwC the matters required to be discussed by Statement
on Auditing Standards No. 114, The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance, and both PwC and the internal
auditors directly provided reports on significant matters to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee had discussions with and received written disclosures from PwC confirming its independence. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the non-audit services provided by PwC, if any, and concluded these services were not incompatible with
maintaining PwC’s independence. The Audit Committee discussed with management and PwC such other matters and received such
assurances from them as the Audit Committee deemed appropriate.
Based on the foregoing review and discussions, and relying thereon, the Audit Committee recommended that the Board of Directors
include the audited consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Barney Barnett
Chair of the Audit Committee
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA
Audit Committee Members:
Robert Barton
James William Patterson
Dan Flanagan
Tony Wolfe
March 15, 2012
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Members of Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of condition and the related consolidated statements of income, of changes in
members’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Farm Credit Services of Mid-America,
ACA (the Association) and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Association’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

March 15, 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 225 South Sixth Street, Suite 1400, Minneapolis, MN 55402
T: (612) 596 6000, www.pwc.com/us
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Consolidated Statements of Condition
A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 ( D o l l a r s i n t h o u s a n d s)

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$15,010,650
80,734
14,929,916
422,124
1,410,903
128,900
32,851
210,945
30,309
281,646
57,678
$17,505,272

$14,088,862
125,787
13,963,075
416,714
1,263,985
130,802
34,010
271,957
23,907
258,375
79,945
$16,442,770

$13,053,455
64,453
12,989,002
411,986
1,055,803
125,888
33,841
321,096
12,887
251,480
56,074
$15,258,057

$14,578,386
92,107
82,361
39,653
14,792,507
—

$13,800,593
98,291
68,224
43,523
14,010,631
—

$12,830,842
114,275
60,459
36,333
13,041,909
—

—
82,000
2,630,765
2,712,765
$17,505,272

8
79,957
2,352,174
2,432,139
$16,442,770

9
77,917
2,138,222
2,216,148
$15,258,057

ASSETS

Loans
Allowance for loan losses
Net loans
Investment in AgriBank, FCB
Investment securities
Accrued interest receivable
Premises and equipment, net
Other earning assets
Other property owned
Assets held for lease, net
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES

Note payable to AgriBank, FCB
Accrued interest payable
Net deferred income tax liability
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Contingencies and commitments
MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Protected members’ equity
Capital stock and participation certificates
Unallocated surplus
Total members' equity
Total liabilities and members' equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income
f o r t h e y e a r e n d e d d e c e m b e r 3 1 ( D o l l a r s i n t h o u s a n d s)

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
(Reversal of) provision for loan losses
Net interest income after (reversal of) provision for loan losses

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$695,109
378,634
316,475
(10,416)
326,891

$725,790
421,312
304,478
95,084
209,394

$718,938
462,633
256,305
62,668
193,637

61,748
5,649
12,291
—
11,674
(3,974)
1,158
88,546

78,909
7,318
17,475
14,922
11,580
(763)
572
130,013

57,817
6,674
6,437
—
9,269
(829)
635
80,003

72,879
49,907
122,786
292,651
14,060
$278,591

68,883
42,644
111,527
227,880
13,928
$213,952

61,051
63,616
124,667
148,973
7,302
$141,671

non-interest income

Patronage income
Financially related services income
Fee income
Allocated insurance reserve account distribution
Operating lease income
Other property owned losses, net
Miscellaneous income, net
Total non-interest income
non-interest expense

Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expense
Total non-interest expense
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members’ Equity
( D o l l a r s i n t h o u s a n d s)

Balance at December 31, 2008

Net income
Capital stock/participation certificates issued
Capital stock/participation certificates retired
Balance at December 31, 2009

Net income
Capital stock/participation certificates issued
Capital stock/participation certificates retired
Balance at December 31, 2010

Net income
Capital stock/participation certificates issued
Capital stock/participation certificates retired
Balance at December 31, 2011

Protected
members’ Equity

Capital stock
and participation
certificates

Unallocated
surplus

Total members’
Equity

$11
—
—
(2)
9
—
—
(1)
8
—
—
(8)
$—

$76,035
—
7,712
(5,830)
77,917
—
6,942
(4,902)
79,957
—
6,811
(4,768)
$82,000

$1,996,551
141,671
—
—
2,138,222
213,952
—
—
2,352,174
278,591
—
—
$2,630,765

$2,072,597
141,671
7,712
(5,832)
2,216,148
213,952
6,942
(4,903)
2,432,139
278,591
6,811
(4,776)
$2,712,765

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Farm credit services of mid-america 37

C o n s o l i d at e d F i n a n c i a l S tat e m e n t s

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
F OR THE Y e a r e n d e d D e c e m b e r 3 1 ( D o l l a r s i n t h o u s a n d s)

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$278,591
4,115
(132)
37,959
(380)
14,778
(10,416)
(27,889)
3,227

$213,952
4,269
11
36,306
(130)
13,793
95,084
(19,721)
401

$141,671
4,084
(7)
30,811
(107)
11,178
62,668
(8,911)
(307)

(5,005)
22,267
(6,184)
10,267
321,198

(12,143)
(23,871)
(15,984)
14,955
306,922

(12,362)
(20,055)
(17,132)
19,631
211,162

(967,981)
22,479
(161,696)
61,012
(60,850)
10,393
(2,824)
(1,099,467)

(1,079,280)
14,993
(221,975)
49,139
(43,071)
7,368
(4,449)
(1,277,275)

(1,074,406)
2,449
(280,679)
32,249
(75,019)
3,922
(2,567)
(1,394,051)

777,793
476
778,269
—
—
$—

969,751
602
970,353
—
—
$—

1,182,202
687
1,182,889
—
—
$—

$5,281
3,710
12
6,895
20,022
—
—

$5,385
3,937
11
7,218
18,789
—
—

$6,030
4,834
3
7,880
37,860
25,453
(230)

$384,818
986

$437,296
4,311

$479,765
(1,609)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income
Depreciation on premises and equipment
(Gain) loss on sale of premises and equipment
Depreciation on assets held for lease
Gain on disposal of assets held for lease
Amortization of premiums on investments
(Reversal of) provision for loan losses
Stock patronage received from AgriBank, FCB
Loss (gain) on other property owned
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
		 Accrued interest receivable
		 Other assets
		 Accrued interest payable
		Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in loans, net
Redemptions of investment in AgriBank, FCB, net
Increase in investment securities, net
Decrease of other earning assets, net
Purchases of assets held for lease, net
Proceeds from sales of other property owned
Purchases of premises and equipment, net
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Increase in note payable to AgriBank, FCB, net
Capital stock and participation certificates issued, net
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year
Supplemental schedule of non-cash activities

Stock financed by loan activities
Stock applied against loan principal
Stock applied against interest
Interest transferred to loans
Loans transferred to other property owned
Financed sales of other property owned
Deferred gain related to financed sales of other property owned
Supplemental information

Interest paid
Taxes paid (refunded)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1

ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

Association

Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA and its subsidiaries,
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, FLCA and Farm Credit
Services of Mid-America, PCA are lending institutions of the
Farm Credit System. We are a member-owned cooperative providing credit and credit related services to, or for the benefit of,
eligible members for qualified agricultural purposes in all counties in Indiana; all counties in Ohio, with the exception of Marion,
Crawford, Wyandot, Hancock, Seneca, Wood, Ottawa, Lucas and
Sandusky; all counties in Kentucky, with the exception of Graves,
Hickman, Carlisle, Fulton, Ballard, McCracken, Calloway, and
Marshall; and all counties in Tennessee.

participate with other lenders in loans to similar entities. Similar
entities are parties that are not eligible for a loan from a Farm
Credit System lending institution, but have operations that are
functionally similar to the activities of eligible borrowers.
Farm Credit System Regulator: The Farm Credit Administration
(FCA) is authorized by Congress to regulate the Farm Credit System
banks and associations. We are examined by the FCA and certain
association actions are subject to the prior approval of the FCA
and/or AgriBank.

Farm Credit Insurance Fund: The Farm Credit Act established the Farm
Credit System Insurance Corporation (Insurance Corporation) to
administer the Farm Credit Insurance Fund (Insurance Fund). The
Insurance Fund is used:
• to insure the timely payment of principal and interest on Farm
Credit System wide debt obligations,
• to insure the retirement of protected borrower capital at par or
stated value, and
We borrow from AgriBank, FCB (AgriBank) and provide financ- • for other specified purposes.
ing and related services to our members. Our ACA holds all the
stock of the FLCA and PCA subsidiaries and provides lease financ- At the discretion of the Insurance Corporation, the Insurance
ing options for agricultural production or operating purposes. Fund is also available to provide assistance to certain troubled
The FLCA makes secured long-term agricultural real estate and Farm Credit System institutions and for the operating expenses
rural home mortgage loans and provides lease financing options of the Insurance Corporation. Each Farm Credit System bank has
and holds certain investments. The PCA makes short-term and been required to pay premiums into the Insurance Fund until the
intermediate-term loans and provides lease financing options assets in the Insurance Fund equal 2% of the aggregated insured
for agricultural production or operating purposes.
obligations adjusted to reflect the reduced risk on loans or investments guaranteed by federal or state governments. This percentWe offer various risk management services, including crop hail, age of aggregate obligations can be changed by the Insurance
and multi-peril crop insurance for borrowers and those eligible Corporation, at its sole discretion, to a percentage it determines
to borrow.
to be actuarially sound.

Farm Credit System and District

Farm Credit System Lending Institutions: The Farm Credit System is a
nationwide system of cooperatively owned banks and associations
established by Congress to meet the credit needs of American agriculture. At December 31, 2011, the Farm Credit System consisted
of four Farm Credit Banks, one Agricultural Credit Bank, and 84
associations. One of the Farm Credit Banks and the Agricultural
Credit Bank merged January 1, 2012. AgriBank and its affiliated
associations are collectively referred to as the AgriBank Farm
Credit District (the District). At December 31, 2011, the District
consisted of 17 Agricultural Credit Associations (ACA) that each
have wholly-owned Federal Land Credit Association (FLCA) and
Production Credit Association (PCA) subsidiaries.
FLCAs are authorized to originate long-term real estate mortgage
loans. PCAs are authorized to originate short-term and intermediate-term loans. ACAs are authorized to originate long-term real
estate mortgage loans and short-term and intermediate-term
loans either directly or through their subsidiaries. Associations
are authorized to provide lease financing options for agricultural
purposes and are also authorized to purchase and hold certain
types of investments. AgriBank provides funding to all associations chartered within the District.

The basis for assessing premiums is debt outstanding with adjustments made for non-accrual loans and impaired investment securities which are assessed a surcharge while guaranteed loans and
investment securities are deductions from the premium base.
AgriBank, in turn, assesses premiums to the associations each
year based on these same factors.

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Principles and Reporting Policies

Our accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) and the prevailing practices within the financial services industry. Preparing financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
Associations are authorized to provide, either directly, or in par- from those estimates.
ticipation with other lenders, credit and related services to eligible
borrowers. Eligible borrowers may include farmers, ranchers, Certain amounts in prior years' financial statements have been
producers or harvesters of aquatic products, rural residents and reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
farm-related service businesses. In addition, associations can
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Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements present the consolidated
financial results of Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA (the
parent) and Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, FLCA and Farm
Credit Services of Mid-America, PCA (the subsidiaries). All material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Significant Accounting Policies

Loans: Origination terms for mortgage loans range from 5 to
40 years while commercial loans are 10 years or less. Almost
all commercial loans are made for agricultural production or
operating purposes.
Loans are carried at their principal amount outstanding. Loan
interest is accrued and credited to interest income based upon
the daily principal amount outstanding. Material fees, net of
related costs, are deferred and recognized over the life of the
loan as an adjustment to net interest income. Other loan fees
are netted with the related origination costs and included as
an adjustment to net interest income. The net amount of these
fees and expenses are not material to the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole.
We place loans in non-accrual status when:
• principal or interest is delinquent for 90 days or more (unless the
loan is well secured and in the process of collection) or
• circumstances indicate that full collection is not expected.
When a loan is placed in non-accrual status, we reverse accrued
interest to the extent principal plus accrued interest before the
transfer exceeds the net realizable value of the collateral. Any
unpaid interest accrued in a prior year is capitalized to the recorded
investment of the loan. Any cash received on non-accrual loans is
applied to reduce the recorded investment in the loan, except in
those cases where the collection of the recorded investment is fully
expected and the loan does not have any unrecovered prior chargeoffs. Non-accrual loans may be returned to accrual status when:
• principal and interest are current,
• prior charge-offs have been recovered,
• the ability of the borrower to fulfill the contractual repayment
terms is fully expected, and
• the loan is not classified as doubtful or loss.
A restructured loan constitutes a troubled debt restructuring,
also known as formally restructured, if for economic or legal
reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulties we grant a
concession to the debtor that we would not otherwise consider.
A concession is generally granted in order to minimize economic
loss and avoid foreclosure. Concessions vary by program and are
borrower-specific and may include interest rate reductions, term
extensions, payment deferrals or the acceptance of additional
collateral in lieu of payments. In limited circumstances, principal
may be forgiven.
Loans are charged-off at the time they are determined to be
uncollectible.
Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of losses on loans in our portfolio as of the financial statement
date. We determine the appropriate level of allowance for loan
losses based on periodic evaluation of factors such as:
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• loan loss history,
• portfolio quality and concentration, and
• current economic and environmental conditions.
Loans in our portfolio that are considered impaired are analyzed
individually to establish a specific allowance for impaired loans.
A loan is impaired when it is probable that all amounts due under
the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected.
We generally measure impairment based on the net realizable
value of the collateral. All risk loans are considered to be impaired
loans. Risk loans include:
• accruing restructured loans,
• accruing loans 90 days or more past due, and
• non-accrual loans.
We record a specific allowance to reduce the carrying amount of
the risk loan to the lower of book value or the net realizable value
of collateral. When we deem a loan to be uncollectible, we charge
the loan principal and prior year(s) accrued interest against the
allowance for loan losses. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are added
to the allowance for loan losses.
An allowance is recorded for probable and estimable credit losses
as of the financial statement date for loans that are not individually assessed as impaired. We use a two-dimensional loan risk
rating model that incorporates a 14-point rating scale to identify and track the probability of borrower default and a separate
6-point scale addressing the loss given default. Loans that were
not individually evaluated for impairment, or were not segregated
according to risk characteristics, are segmented using the probability of default. The probability of default ratings are further
segmented by loss given default ratings. The combination of the
default probability and estimated loss given default assumptions
are the primary basis for recognition and measurement of loan
collectability of these pools of loans.
Changes in the allowance for loan losses consist of provision
activity, recorded as “(Reversal of) provision for loan losses” on the
Consolidated Statements of Income, and recoveries and charge-offs.
Investment in AgriBank: Accounting for our stock investment in
AgriBank is on a cost plus allocated equities basis.
Investment Securities: We are authorized to purchase and hold certain types of investments. As we have the positive intent and ability
to hold these investments to maturity, they have been classified as
held-to-maturity and are carried at cost adjusted for the amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. If an investment is
determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired, the carrying
value of the security is written down to fair value. The impairment
loss is separated into credit related and non-credit related components. The credit related component is expensed through earnings
in the period of impairment. The non-credit related component is
recognized in other comprehensive income and amortized over
the remaining life of the security as an increase in the security’s
carrying amount.
Premises and Equipment: The carrying amount of premises and
equipment is at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Calculation
of depreciation is generally on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Gains or losses on disposition are included in current operating results. Maintenance and
repairs are included in operating expense and improvements
are capitalized.

Other Property Owned: Other property owned, consisting of real and
personal property acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of
foreclosure, is recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs
upon acquisition and is included in “Other property owned” on the
Consolidated Statements of Condition. Any initial reduction in the
carrying amount of a loan to the fair value of the collateral received
is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Revised estimates to
the fair value less cost to sell are reported as adjustments to the
carrying amount of the asset, provided that such adjusted value is
not in excess of the carrying amount at acquisition. Related income
and expenses from operations and carrying value adjustments are
included in “Other property owned loss, net” on the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Income Taxes: The ACA and PCA accrue federal and state income
taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future
tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts and tax basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets
are recorded if the deferred tax asset is more likely than not to
be realized. If the realization test cannot be met, the deferred tax
asset is reduced by a valuation allowance. The expected future
tax consequences of uncertain income tax positions are accrued.
The FLCA is exempt from federal and other taxes to the extent
provided in the Farm Credit Act.
Statements of Cash Flows: For purposes of reporting cash flow, cash
includes cash on hand.

Leases: We have finance and operating leases. Under finance leases,
unearned income from lease contracts represents the excess of Fair Value Measurement: The Financial Accounting Standards Board
gross lease receivables plus residual receivables over the cost of (FASB) guidance on “Fair Value Measurements” describes three
leased equipment. We amortize net unearned finance income to levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value.
earnings on the interest method. The carrying amount of finance
leases is included in “Loans” on the Consolidated Statements of Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
Condition and represents lease rent receivables net of the unearned liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the
income plus the residual receivable. We recognize operating lease measurement date.
revenue evenly over the term of the lease. We charge depreciation
and other expenses against revenue as incurred. The carrying Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included
amount of operating leases is included in “Assets held for lease, within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either
net” on the Consolidated Statements of Condition and represents directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include the following:
the asset cost net of accumulated depreciation.
• quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
• quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in marPost-Employment Benefit Plans: The District has three post-employkets that are not active so that they are traded less frequently
ment benefit plans.
than exchange-traded instruments, the prices are not current
or principal market information is not released publicly;
The defined contribution plan allows eligible employees to save • inputs that are observable such as interest rates and yield curves,
for their retirement either pre-tax/post-tax or both with an
prepayment speeds, credit risks, and default rates, and
employer match on a percentage of the employee’s contributions. • inputs derived principally from or corroborated by observable
All employees hired after December 31, 2006, only participate in
market data by correlation or other means.
the defined contribution plan. We provide benefits under this plan
in the form of a fixed percentage of salary contribution in addi- Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no
tion to the employer match. Employer contributions are expensed market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the
when incurred.
assets or liabilities. These unobservable inputs reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about assumptions that market
Certain employees also participate in the defined benefit retire- participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Level 3
ment plan of the District. The plan is comprised of two benefit assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value
formulas. Employees hired prior to October 1, 2001, were on the is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methfinal average pay formula. These employees were given a one-time odologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which
option to convert to the cash balance formula or to remain on a final the determination of fair value requires significant management
average pay formula. Between October 1, 2001, and December 31, judgment or estimation.
2006, all new benefits-eligible employees participated in the cash
balance formula. Effective January 1, 2007, the defined benefit Recently Issued or Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
retirement plan was closed to new employees. The District plan In September 2011, the FASB issued guidance entitled,
utilizes the “Projected Unit Credit” actuarial method for financial “Compensation — Retirement Benefits — Multiemployer Plans.”
reporting purposes and the “Entry Age Normal Cost” method for The guidance is intended to provide more information about an
funding purposes. Certain employees also participate in the non- employer’s financial obligations to multiemployer pension and
qualified defined benefit pension restoration plan of the AgriBank post-employment benefit plans which should help financial stateFarm Credit District. The plan provides retirement benefits above ment users better understand the financial health of significant
the Internal Revenue Code compensation limit to certain highly plans that the employer participates. For non-public entities, the
compensated eligible employees. Benefits payable under this plan disclosures are effective for annual reporting periods ending on
are offset by the benefits payable from the pension plan.
or after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidance is not
expected to have an impact on our financial condition or results
We also provide certain health insurance benefits to eligible of operations, but will result in additional disclosures.
retired employees according to the terms of those benefit plans.
The anticipated cost of these benefits is accrued during the employ- In June 2011, the FASB issued guidance entitled “Presentation of
ees’ active service period.
Comprehensive Income.” This standard eliminates the current
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option to report other comprehensive income and its components
in the statement of changes in equity. An entity can elect to present
items of net income and other comprehensive income in one continuous statement — referred to as the Statement of Comprehensive
Income — or in two separate, but consecutive, statements. Each
component of net income and each component of other comprehensive income, together with totals for comprehensive income and its
two parts — net income and other comprehensive income, would
need to be displayed under either alternative. The statement(s)
would need to be presented with equal prominence as the other
primary financial statements. The guidance is intended to improve
the comparability, consistency, and transparency of financial
reporting and to increase the prominence of items reported in
other comprehensive income. For non-public entities, this guidance is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2012,
and interim and annual periods thereafter. The adoption of this
guidance will have no impact on our financial condition or results
of operations, but will result in changes to our financial statement
presentation.
In May 2011, the FASB issued guidance entitled, “Fair Value
Measurement – Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and
IFRSs.” The new guidance results in a consistent definition of
fair value and common requirements for measurement of and
disclosure about fair value between U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The
amendments include the following:
• Application of the highest and best use valuation premise is only
relevant when measuring the fair value of non-financial assets.
• A n exception to the requirement for measuring fair value when a
reporting entity manages its financial instruments on the basis
of its net exposure, rather than its gross exposure, to market
risks such as interest rate risk and credit risk of counterparties.
• Expansion of the disclosures about fair value measurements.
New disclosures are required about the use of a non-financial

asset measured or disclosed at fair value if its use differs from
its highest and best use. In addition, entities must report the
level in the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities not
recorded at fair value but where fair value is disclosed.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2011. Early application is not permitted. The adoption of this guidance will not have a significant impact on our financial condition
or results of operations, but will result in additional disclosures.
In April 2011, the FASB issued guidance entitled “A Creditor’s
Determination of Whether a Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt
Restructuring.” This guidance provides additional clarification to
creditors for evaluating whether a modification or restructuring
of a receivable is a troubled debt restructuring. The guidance is
effective for non-public entities for annual periods ending on or
after December 15, 2012, including interim periods within those
annual periods. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to
have a significant impact on our financial condition or results
of operations.
In July 2010, the FASB issued guidance on “Disclosures about the
Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for
Credit Losses.” This guidance is intended to provide additional
information to assist financial statement users in assessing an
entity’s credit risk exposures and evaluating the adequacy of its
allowance for credit losses. Existing disclosures are amended to
include additional disclosures of financing receivables on a disaggregated basis and also calls for new disclosures. For non-public
entities, the disclosures are effective for interim and annual
reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2011. The
adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our financial condition or results of operations, but resulted in additional
disclosures in Note 3.

3

LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
Loans classified under the FCA Uniform Loan Classification System consisted of the following (in thousands):
		
A s o f D ece m b e r 31

Real estate mortgage
Production and intermediate term
Agribusiness
Rural residential real estate
Finance leases
Other

Total

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

Amount

%

Amount

%	A m o u n t

$10,014,583
2,859,528
736,481
1,042,501
281,132
76,425

66.8%
19.0%
4.9%
6.9%
1.9%
0.5%

$9,140,247
2,689,810
849,281
1,055,470
300,961
53,093

64.9%
19.1%
6.0%
7.5%
2.1%
0.4%

$8,380,730
2,496,715
791,424
1,077,502
259,170
47,914

64.1%
19.1%
6.1%
8.3%
2.0%
0.4%

%

$15,010,650

100.0%

$14,088,862

100.0%

$13,053,455

100.0%

Generally, FCA loan types are defined as:
Real estate mortgage: long-term real estate loans made to borrowers typically for farm real estate, refinancing existing mortgages, or
constructing various facilities used in operations.
Production and intermediate term: loans made to borrowers typically for operating funds and equipment.
Agribusiness: loans made to cooperatives and their subsidiaries, farm related businesses, and processing and marketing entities.
Rural residential real estate: loans made to borrowers for any rural home purpose.
Finance leases: lease receivables made under regulatory authorities.
Other loans: loans that do not meet the individual definitions described above.

42 2011 Annual report

Participations

We may purchase or sell participation interests with other parties in order to diversify risk, manage loan volume, and comply with
Farm Credit Administration Regulations or General Financing Agreement limitations. The following table presents information
regarding participations purchased and/or sold (in thousands):
AgriBank, FCB

Other Farm 	Non-Farm
Credit Institutions	
Credit Institutions	Total

Participations	 Participations	Participations	
A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1	p u r c h a s e d	SOLD 	p u r c h a s e d 	SOLD	p u r c h a s e d 	SOLD

Real estate mortgage
Production and intermediate term
Agribusiness
Rural residential real estate
Finance leases
Other
Total

$—
—
—
—
—
—
$—

($858,206)
—
(17,226)
—
—
—
($875,432)

$132,729
90,831
523,260
—
60,939
21,000
$828,759

Information in the preceding chart excludes loans entered into
under our mission related investment authority.

Portfolio Concentrations

We have concentrations with individual borrowers, within various
agricultural commodities and within our chartered territory. At
December 31, 2011, volume plus commitments to our ten largest
borrowers totaled an amount equal to 23.9% of members’ equity.
Our agricultural commodity concentrations at December 31, 2011,
included corn and soybeans (26.8%), other crops (18.4%), real estate
and rural home (15.4%), cattle (12.9%), and other livestock (6.9%).
No other single commodity exceeded 5% of loan volume. Our
commodity concentrations have not changed materially from
prior years.
Our portfolio is concentrated primarily in the following four states
at December 31, 2011: Indiana 25.5%, Ohio 24.1%, Tennessee 20.6%,
and Kentucky 16.5%.

($6,948)
—
(71,462)
—
—
—
($78,410)

$918,781
137,629
64,488
15,755
370,090
14,731
$1,521,474

A s o f D ece m b e r 31

Non-accrual loans
Current as to principal
and interest
Past due
Total non-accrual loans
Accruing restructured loans
Accruing loans 90 days
or more past due
Total risk loans
Volume with specific reserves
Volume without specific reserves
Total risk loans
Total specific reserves

($5,333)
(1,124)
(100)
(58)
—
—
($6,615)
2 01 1

Participations

p u r c h a s e d 	SOLD

$1,051,510
228,460
587,748
15,755
431,029
35,731
$2,350,233
2 01 0

($870,487)
(1,124)
(88,788)
(58)
—
—
($960,457)
2009

$144,746
141,740
286,486
10,222

$126,932
148,959
275,891
10,150

$95,770
118,909
214,679
578

714
$297,422
$51,871
245,551
$297,422
$14,317

1,318
$287,359
$72,801
214,558
$287,359
$20,418

1,700
$216,957
$82,609
134,348
$216,957
$24,472

fo r t h e y e a r e n d e d D ece m b e r 31

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

Income on accrual risk loans
Income on non-accrual loans
Total income on risk loans
Average recorded investment

$829
9,715
$10,544
$312,680

$688
4,711
$5,399
$262,634

$320
5,253
$5,573
$209,993

While these concentrations represent our maximum potential
credit risk as it relates to recorded loan principal, a substantial The decrease in accruing loans 90 days or more past due was priportion of our lending activities is collateralized. This reduces marily due to two loans which paid off during the year. Based on
our exposure to credit loss associated with our lending activities. our analysis, all loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing
We consider credit risk exposure in establishing the allowance interest were adequately secured and in the process of collection
for loan losses.
and, as such, were eligible to remain in accruing status.

Risk Loans

A loan is considered a risk loan if it is probable that we will be
unable to collect all principal and interest according to the loan
agreement. The following table presents risk loan information (in
thousands). Accruing volume includes accrued interest receivable.

Non-accrual loans increased during 2011 primarily due to smaller
loans to customers primarily dependent on non-farm income to
service their debt. Job losses or reduced income resulted in the
customers’ inability to continue to meet these debt obligations.
We did not have any material commitments to lend additional
money to borrowers whose loans were at risk at December 31, 2011.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

A summary of the changes in the allowance for loan losses follows (in thousands):
2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$125,787
(10,416)
7,006
(41,643)
$80,734

$64,453
95,084
2,938
(36,688)
$125,787

$32,571
62,668
2,051
(32,837)
$64,453

Fo r t h e y e a r e n d e d D ece m b e r 31

Balance at beginning of year
(Reversal of) provision for loan losses
Loan recoveries
Loan charge-offs
Balance at end of year

Based on our analysis of factors such as loan loss history, portfolio quality, and current economic and environmental conditions,
provision for loan loss was $95.1 million and $62.7 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively. We recorded a reversal of provision during
2011 of $10.4 million. This reversal was primarily due to an enhancement to our allowance methodology that incorporated the strong
collateralization of our agricultural mortgage portfolio, as well as slight improvement in overall environmental factors related to
our residential mortgage portfolio, and more positive credit quality.
A summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses and period end recorded investments in loans by loan type is as follows
(in thousands):
		
		
			

Allowance for loan losses
Balance at December 31, 2010
(Reversal of) provision for loan losses
Loan recoveries
Loan charge-offs
Balance at December 31, 2011
Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment

Real estate
mortgage

Finance
leases	Other	Total

$65,471
(16,762)
4,717
(17,064)
$36,362

$34,514
2,607
1,292
(6,126)
$32,287

$15,491
(2,617)
800
(6,021)
$7,653

$7,620
444
197
(4,540)
$3,721

$2,591
(2,013)
—
—
$578

$100
7,925
—
(7,892)
$133

$125,787
(10,416)
7,006
(41,643)
$80,734

$5,234

$8,078

$404

$601

$—

$—

$14,317

$24,209

$7,249

$3,120

$578

$133

$66,417

$2,894,395

$739,948

$1,044,974

$281,132

$76,790

$15,131,010

$66,152

$961

$39,434

$771

$1,097

$299,707

$2,828,243

$738,987

$1,005,540

$280,361

$75,693

$14,831,303

Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment
$31,128
Recorded investments in loans outstanding
Ending balance at
December 31, 2011
$10,093,771
Ending balance for loans individually
evaluated for impairment
$191,292
Ending balance for loans collectively
evaluated for impairment

Production		Rural
and intermediate		
residential
term	Agribusiness
real estate

$9,902,479

4

INVESTMENT IN AGRIBANK

At December 31, 2011, we were required by AgriBank to maintain
an investment equal to 2.5% of the average quarterly balance of
our note payable to AgriBank plus an additional 1% on growth
that exceeded a targeted rate.

5

INVESTMENT SECURITIES
AND OTHER EARNING ASSETS

We held investment securities of $1.4 billion, $1.3 billion, and
$1.1 billion at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
These investments consisted of government guaranteed instruments including investment securities made up of a portion of
At December 31, 2011, we were also required by AgriBank to main- loans guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (SBA),
tain an investment equal to 8% of the quarter end balance of the investment securities made up of U.S. Department of Agriculture
participation interests in real estate loans sold to AgriBank under securities (USDA), and investment securities made up of Farm
the asset pool program.
Services Administration securities (FSA).
The balance of our investment in AgriBank, all required stock, was The securities have been classified as held-to-maturity. The invest$422.1 million, $416.7 million, and $412.0 million at December 31, ment portfolio is evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment.
2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
To date, we have not recognized any impairment on our investment portfolio.
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Credit Quality and Delinquency

One credit quality indicator we utilize is the FCA Uniform Loan
Classification System that categorizes loans into five categories.
The categories are defined as follows:
• Acceptable: assets are expected to be fully collectible and represent the highest quality,
• Other assets especially mentioned (OAEM) (special mention): assets
are currently collectible but exhibit some potential weakness,
• Substandard: assets exhibit some serious weakness in repayment
capacity, equity and/or collateral pledged on the loan,
• Doubtful: assets exhibit similar weaknesses to substandard
assets; however, doubtful assets have additional weaknesses
in existing factors, conditions and values that make collection
in full highly questionable, and
• Loss: assets are considered uncollectible.

The following table shows loans and related accrued interest as a
percentage of total loans and related accrued interest receivable
by loan type:
A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1

Real estate mortgage
Production and
intermediate term
Agribusiness
Rural residential real estate
Finance leases
Other
Total loan portfolio

Substandard/
Doubtful	Total

Acceptable

OAEM

93.0%

3.2%

3.8%

100.0%

92.6%
88.3%
93.5%
99.6%
92.9%
92.9%

2.8%
9.2%
0.7%
0.0%
5.7%
3.2%

4.6%
2.5%
5.8%
0.4%
1.4%
3.9%

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

The following table provides an age analysis of past due loans by loan type (accruing volume includes accrued interest receivable)
(in thousands):
30-89 days	
90 days or
past due 	more past due

A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1

Real estate mortgage
Production and intermediate term
Agribusiness
Rural residential real estate
Finance leases
Other
Total

$64,646
17,478
386
23,028
80
—
$105,618

$62,991
28,121
205
12,820
622
—
$104,759

Troubled Debt Restructurings

A restructuring of a loan constitutes a troubled debt restructuring,
also known as formally restructured, if the creditor for economic
or legal reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulties grants
a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider.
Concessions vary by program and are borrower-specific and may
include interest rate reductions, term extensions, payment deferrals or the acceptance of additional collateral in lieu of payments. In
limited circumstances, principal may be forgiven. When a restructured loan constitutes a troubled debt restructuring, these loans
are included within our risk loans. All risk loans are analyzed
within our allowance for loan losses. We record specific allowance
to reduce the carrying amount of the formally restructured loan
to the lower of book value or net realizable value of collateral.
The following table presents information regarding troubled debt
restructurings that occurred during the year ended December 31,
2011 (in thousands):
		
		
A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1

Pre-modification	post-modification
outstanding	outstanding
recorded investment 	recorded investment

Real estate mortgage
Production and intermediate term
Rural residential real estate
Total

$6,736
4,605
1,120
$12,461

$6,802
4,527
1,119
$12,448

total past due

not past due
or less than 30
days past due

$127,637
45,599
591
35,848
702
—
$210,377

$9,966,134
2,848,796
739,357
1,009,126
280,430
76,790
$14,920,633

90 days
total 	past due and
loans	
accruing

$10,093,771
2,894,395
739,948
1,044,974
281,132
76,790
$15,131,010

$306
408
—
—
—
—
$714

Pre-modification represents the recorded investment just prior
to restructuring, and post-modification represents the recorded
investment immediately following the restructuring. The recorded
investment is the face amount of the receivable increased or
decreased by applicable accrued interest and unamortized premium, discount, finance charges, or acquisition costs and may also
reflect a previous direct write-down of the investment.
The following table presents information regarding troubled debt
restructurings that occurred within the previous 12 months and
for which there was a subsequent payment default during the year
ended December 31, 2011 (in thousands):
A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1

Recorded Investment

Real estate mortgage
Production and intermediate term
Rural residential real estate
Total

$4 ,0 3 5
1,9 2 6
715
$6,676

Troubled debt restructurings outstanding at December 31, 2011,
totaled $22.5 million, of which $12.3 million were in non-accrual
status. At December 31, 2011, there were no additional commitments to lend to borrowers whose loans have been modified in a
troubled debt restructuring.

Farm credit services of mid-america 45

N o t e s t o c o n s o l i d at e d F i n a n c i a l S tat e m e n t s

Allowance for Loan Losses

A summary of the changes in the allowance for loan losses follows (in thousands):
2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$125,787
(10,416)
7,006
(41,643)
$80,734

$64,453
95,084
2,938
(36,688)
$125,787

$32,571
62,668
2,051
(32,837)
$64,453

Fo r t h e y e a r e n d e d D ece m b e r 31

Balance at beginning of year
(Reversal of) provision for loan losses
Loan recoveries
Loan charge-offs
Balance at end of year

Based on our analysis of factors such as loan loss history, portfolio quality, and current economic and environmental conditions,
provision for loan loss was $95.1 million and $62.7 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively. We recorded a reversal of provision during
2011 of $10.4 million. This reversal was primarily due to an enhancement to our allowance methodology that incorporated the strong
collateralization of our agricultural mortgage portfolio, as well as slight improvement in overall environmental factors related to
our residential mortgage portfolio, and more positive credit quality.
A summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses and period end recorded investments in loans by loan type is as follows
(in thousands):
		
		
A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1

Allowance for loan losses
Balance at December 31, 2010
(Reversal of) provision for loan losses
Loan recoveries
Loan charge-offs
Balance at December 31, 2011
Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment

Production		
Rural	
Real estate 	and intermediate		residential	
Finance
mortgage	
term	
Agribusiness	real estate	leases	

$65,471
(16,762)
4,717
(17,064)
$36,362

$34,514
2,607
1,292
(6,126)
$32,287

$15,491
(2,617)
800
(6,021)
$7,653

$7,620
444
197
(4,540)
$3,721

$2,591
(2,013)
—
—
$578

$100
7,925
—
(7,892)
$133

$125,787
(10,416)
7,006
(41,643)
$80,734

$5,234

$8,078

$404

$601

$—

$—

$14,317

$24,209

$7,249

$3,120

$578

$133

$66,417

$2,894,395

$739,948

$1,044,974

$281,132

$76,790

$15,131,010

$66,152

$961

$39,434

$771

$1,097

$299,707

$2,828,243

$738,987

$1,005,540

$280,361

$75,693

$14,831,303

Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment
$31,128
Recorded investments in loans outstanding
Ending balance at
December 31, 2011
$10,093,771
Ending balance for loans individually
evaluated for impairment
$191,292
Ending balance for loans collectively
evaluated for impairment

Other	Total

$9,902,479

4

INVESTMENT IN AGRIBANK

At December 31, 2011, we were required by AgriBank to maintain
an investment equal to 2.5% of the average quarterly balance of
our note payable to AgriBank plus an additional 1% on growth
that exceeded a targeted rate.

5

INVESTMENT SECURITIES
AND OTHER EARNING ASSETS

We held investment securities of $1.4 billion, $1.3 billion, and
$1.1 billion at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
These investments consisted of government guaranteed instruments including investment securities made up of a portion of
At December 31, 2011, we were also required by AgriBank to main- loans guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (SBA),
tain an investment equal to 8% of the quarter end balance of the investment securities made up of U.S. Department of Agriculture
participation interests in real estate loans sold to AgriBank under securities (USDA), and investment securities made up of Farm
the asset pool program.
Services Administration securities (FSA).
The balance of our investment in AgriBank, all required stock, was The securities have been classified as held-to-maturity. The invest$422.1 million, $416.7 million, and $412.0 million at December 31, ment portfolio is evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment.
2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
To date, we have not recognized any impairment on our investment portfolio.
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Based on additional analysis performed during the year, we
determined certain instruments originated under our mission
related investment authority and previously classified as investment securities had characteristics more closely aligned with
that of loans. As such, we reclassified $35.0 million, $34.9 million, and $29.9 million of these instruments for the periods ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. The effects of
the change in presentation are not material to the consolidated
financial statements.

The following table presents further information on investment
securities (in thousands):
2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$1,410,903
11,621
(32,290)
$1,390,234
2.6%

$1,263,985
10,596
(30,199)
$1,244,382
2.6%

$1,055,803
7,511
(19,379)
$1,043,935
2.4%

A s o f D ece m b e r 31

Amortized cost
Unrealized gains
Unrealized losses
Fair value
Weighted average yield

The following table presents the weighted average yield, amortized cost, unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of the investment securities (in thousands):
		
A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1

SBA
USDA
FSA
Total

Weighted	amortized	unrealized	unrealized	fair
average yield	cost	gains	losses	
value

2.1%
2.7%
4.3%
2.6%

$480,183
830,687
100,033
$1,410,903

$7,824
1,007
2,790
$11,621

$4,484
27,382
424
$32,290

$483,523
804,312
102,399
$1,390,234

2.2%
2.4%
5.1%
2.6%

$407,234
753,196
103,555
$1,263,985

$6,944
710
2,942
$10,596

$3,053
26,921
225
$30,199

$411,125
726,985
106,272
$1,244,382

2.1%
2.1%
5.5%
2.4%

$468,775
462,966
124,062
$1,055,803

$4,203
472
2,836
$7,511

$5,433
13,227
719
$19,379

$467,545
450,211
126,179
$1,043,935

A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 0

SBA
USDA
FSA
Total
A s o f D ece m b e r 31 , 2009

SBA
USDA
FSA
Total

Investment income is recorded in “Interest income” on the Consolidated Statements of Income and totaled $34.4 million, $30.3 million, and $21.2 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
The following table presents contractual maturities of our invest- Unrealized losses associated with investment securities are not
ment securities (in thousands):
considered to be other-than-temporary due to the 100% guaranA s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1
amortized cost
tee of the principal by the U.S government. However, the premiLess than one year
$28
ums paid to purchase the investment are not guaranteed and are
One to five years
34,097 amortized over the weighted average maturity of each loan as a
reduction to interest income. Repayment of principal is assessed
More than five to ten years
264,690
at least quarterly, and any remaining unamortized premium is
More than ten years
1,112,088
Total
$1,410,903 taken as a reduction to interest income if principal repayment is
unlikely, or when a demand for payment is made for the guarantee.
Expected maturities differ from contractual maturities because At December 31, 2011, most of the $32.3 million unrealized loss
borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations.
represents unamortized premium.
A summary of investments in an unrealized loss position presented Other earning assets result from successor-in-interest contracts
by the length of time that the investments have been in continu- from our involvement with the federal government’s tobacco buyous unrealized loss position follows (in thousands):
out program. The volume was $210.9 million, $272.0 million, and
		
Less than 12 months	
Greater than 12 months
$321.1 million at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1
Fair Value	
Losses	
Fair Value	
Losses
These amounts include both principal and interest income receivSBA
$121,221
$2,824
$71,779
$1,660
able. These investments align well with our mission and strategies; however, because of limited value to the customer, as only
USDA
134,222
8,644
548,275
18,738
two program payments remain, we discontinued the purchase
FSA
9,432
319
3,542
105
Total
$264,875 $11,787
$623,596
$20,503 of additional contracts during 2011. We evaluate these assets for
impairment. These assets are 100% guaranteed by the U.S. government and even in light of the recent downgrade, no evidence exists
that would indicate an impairment of this portfolio is warranted.
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PREMISES, EQUIPMENT AND ASSETS HELD FOR LEASE

Premises and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):
2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

Land, buildings
and improvements

$49,369

$48,716

$47,199

Furniture and equipment
Subtotal
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total

20,395
69,764
(36,913)
$32,851

19,347
68,063
(34,053)
$34,010

17,720
64,919
(31,078)
$33,841

A s o f D ece m b e r 31

Through our leasing portfolio, we hold the lessor’s interest in equipment and facility assets. The following table provides a summary
of our operating lease income and assets held for lease by major
category (in thousands):
fo r t h e y e a r e n d e d d ece m b e r 31

Operating lease income

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$11,674

$11,580

$9,269

$379,760
13,433
393,193
(111,547)
$281,646

$344,675
15,906
360,581
(102,206)
$258,375

$317,506
16,305
333,811
(82,331)
$251,480

AS O F d e c e m b e r 3 1

Equipment
Facilities
Subtotal
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total

The following is a schedule of expected future minimum
payments on operating leases as of December 31, 2011
(in thousands):
F OR THE YEARS ENDING D e c e m b e r 3 1

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
Subsequent years
Total minimum future payments

$51,552
47,488
41,571
34,953
27,876
21,837
$225,277

7

NOTE PAYABLE TO AGRIBANK

Our note payable to AgriBank represents borrowings, in the form
of a line of credit, to fund our loan portfolio. The line of credit is
governed by a General Financing Agreement and our assets serve
as collateral. The total line of credit was $16.1 billion and the
outstanding principal under the line of credit was $14.6 billion
at December 31, 2011. The interest rate is adjusted monthly and
was 2.5% at December 31, 2011. During 2011, our average balance was $13.8 billion with an average interest rate of 2.7%. Our
average balance during 2010 was $12.9 billion with an average
interest rate of 3.3% and during 2009 our average balance was
$12.1 billion with an average interest rate of 3.8%. The maturity
date is April 30, 2012, for our note payable, at which time the note
will be renegotiated.
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The General Financing Agreement provides for limitations on
our ability to borrow funds based on specified factors or formulas
relating primarily to outstanding balances, credit quality and
financial condition. At December 31, 2011, and throughout the
year, we were within the specified limitations and in compliance
with all debt covenants.

8

MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Capitalization Requirements

In accordance with the Farm Credit Act, each borrower is required
to invest in the Association as a condition of obtaining a loan. As
authorized by the Agricultural Credit Act and our capital bylaws,
the Board of Directors has adopted a capital plan that establishes
a stock purchase requirement for obtaining a loan of 2% of the
customer’s total loan(s) or one thousand dollars, whichever is less.
The stock purchase requirement of obtaining a lease is one share
of Class D common stock for those eligible to hold such stock, or
one participation certificate for those not eligible to hold such
stock. In addition, the purchase of one participation certificate
is required of all customers who purchase financial services and
are not a stockholder. The Board of Directors may increase the
amount of required investment to the extent authorized in the
capital bylaws. The borrower acquires ownership of the capital
stock at the time the loan or lease is made. The aggregate par
value of the stock is added to the principal amount of the related
obligation. We retain a first lien on the stock or participation certificates owned by customers.

Protection Mechanisms

Under the Farm Credit Act, certain borrower equity is protected.
We are required to retire protected borrower equity at par or stated
value regardless of its book value. Protected borrower equity
includes capital stock and participation certificates that were
outstanding as of January 6, 1988, or were issued prior to October
6, 1988 as a requirement for obtaining a loan. If an association was
unable to retire protected borrower equity at par value or stated
value, the Farm Credit Insurance Fund would provide the amounts
needed to retire this equity.
All Class B protected common stock and Class A protected participation certificates were retired during the year; therefore, no protected borrower equity was outstanding as of December 31, 2011.

Regulatory Capitalization Requirements

Under capital adequacy regulations, we are required to maintain
a permanent capital ratio of at least 7%, a total surplus ratio of at
least 7%, and a core surplus ratio of at least 3.5%. The calculation
of these ratios in accordance with Farm Credit Administration
Regulations is discussed as follows:
• T he permanent capital ratio is average at-risk capital divided
by average risk-adjusted assets. At December 31, 2011, our ratio
was 14.8%.
• T he total surplus ratio is average unallocated surplus less any
deductions made in the computation of permanent capital
divided by average risk-adjusted assets. At December 31, 2011,
our ratio was 14.2%.

• T
 he core surplus ratio is average unallocated surplus less any Patronage Distributions
deductions made in the computation of total surplus and less The Farm Credit Administration Regulations prohibit patronage
any excess stock investment in AgriBank divided by average distributions to the extent they would reduce our permanent
risk-adjusted assets. At December 31, 2011, our ratio was 14.2%. capital ratio below the minimum permanent capital adequacy
standards. We do not foresee any events that would result in this
We have an agreement with AgriBank which defines how our prohibition in 2012. However, we do not have a patronage program
investment in AgriBank is allocated in calculating regulatory to make such distributions.
capital ratios. According to the agreement, we include in our ratios
all of our investment in AgriBank that is in excess of the required
amount. We no longer have any excess stock at December 31, 2011,
2010, or 2009, respectively. These changes did not have a material
impact on our regulatory capital ratios.

9

income taxes

Description of Equities

The following table presents information regarding classes and
number of shares of stock and participation certificates outstand- Provision for Income Taxes
ing as of December 31, 2011. All shares and participation certifi- Our provision for income taxes follows (in thousands):
cates were $5.00 par value.
Fo r t h e y e a r e n d e d D ece m b e r 31
2 01 1
2 01 0
		

Class D common stock (at-risk)
Class B participation certificates (at-risk)

shares outstanding

13,295,514
3,104,502

Under our bylaws, we are also authorized to issue Class C preferred
stock. This stock is at-risk and nonvoting with a $5.00 par value
per share. Currently, no stock of this class has been issued.
Only holders of Class D common stock have voting rights. Our
bylaws do not prohibit us from paying dividends on any classes
of stock. However, no dividends have been declared during the
last three years.
Our bylaws generally permit stock and participation certificates to
be retired at the discretion of the Board of Directors and in accordance with our capitalization plans, provided prescribed capital
standards have been met. At December 31, 2011, we exceeded the
prescribed standards. We do not anticipate any significant changes
in capital that would affect the normal retirement of stock.
In the event of our liquidation or dissolution, according to our
bylaws, any remaining assets after payment or retirement of all
liabilities will be distributed in the following order of priority:
• first, to holders of Class C preferred stock and
• second, to holders of Class D common stock and Class B participation certificates in the proportion that the aggregate interest
paid by each holder over the prior two years bears to the total
interest paid by all holders of stock and participation certificates.
In the event of impairment, losses will be absorbed pro rata by
impairment based on the following order of priority:
• first, to holders of Class D common stock and Class B participation certificates and
• second, to holders of Class C preferred stock.
All classes of stock are transferable to other customers who are
eligible to hold such class as long as we meet the regulatory minimum capital requirements.
All remaining Class B protected common stock and Class A protected participation certificates were retired during the year;
therefore, no protected borrower equity was outstanding as of
December 31, 2011. Our bylaws do not authorize further issuances
of these classes of stock or participation certificates.

Current
Federal
State
Total current
Deferred
Federal
State
Total deferred
Provision for income taxes
Effective tax rate

2009

($498)
421
(77)

$5,697
466
6,163

($13,703)
(110)
(13,813)

13,055
1,082
14,137
$14,060
4.8%

7,329
436
7,765
$13,928
6.1%

21,473
(358)
21,115
$7,302
4.9%

The following table quantifies the differences between the provision for income taxes and income taxes at the statutory rates
(in thousands):
Fo r t h e y e a r e n d e d D ece m b e r 31

Federal tax at statutory rate
Impact of graduated rates
State tax, net
Effect of non-taxable entity
Other
Provision for income taxes

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$99,501
381
614
(86,533)
97
$14,060

$77,479
382
615
(64,483)
(65)
$13,928

$50,650
216
340
(43,298)
(606)
$7,302

Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are composed of the following
(in thousands):
2 01 1

2 01 0

Allowance for loan losses
$8,065
Post-retirement benefit accrual
388
Previously taxed non-accrual interest
1,169
Net operating loss carryforward
7,103
Leasing related, net
(94,892)
AgriBank, FCB 2002 allocated stock
(2,917)
Accrued pension asset
(1,569)
Other assets
292
Net deferred tax liabilities
($82,361)
Gross deferred tax assets
$17,017
Gross deferred tax liabilities
($99,378)

$8,084
420
724
5,035
(77,877)
(2,913)
(1,968)
271
($68,224)
$14,534
($82,758)

AS O F D e c e m b e r 3 1

2009

$5,056
446
965
—
(62,019)
(2,910)
(2,262)
265
($60,459)
$6,732
($67,191)

A valuation reserve for the deferred tax assets was not necessary
at December 31, 2011, 2010, or 2009.
We have not provided for deferred income taxes on approximately
$188.8 million of patronage allocations received from AgriBank
prior to 1993. Such allocations, distributed in the form of stock,
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are subject to tax only upon conversion to cash. Our intent is to potential future cash contributions would be $79.1 million. Please
permanently maintain this investment in AgriBank. Additionally, refer to the Combined AgriBank, FCB and Affiliated Associations
we have not provided deferred income taxes on accumulated FLCA 2011 Annual Report for detailed disclosures under the FASB guidearnings of $1.7 billion as it is our intent to permanently maintain ance on “Compensation — Retirement Benefits.”
this equity in the FLCA or to distribute the earnings to members
in a manner that results in no additional tax liability to us.
Retiree Medical Plans: District employers also provide certain health
insurance benefits to eligible retired employees according to the
At December 31, 2011, we had no uncertain income tax positions. terms of the benefit plan. The anticipated costs of these benefits
are accrued during the period of the employee’s active status. We
provide this benefit to certain employees based on eligible criteria.
As of 1996, no additional employees met the eligibility requirements. As a result, we incur minimal costs associated with the
retiree medical plans. Postretirement benefits income included in
“Salaries and employee benefits” in the Consolidated Statements
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
of Income was $212 thousand, $167 thousand, and $133 thousand
for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively, reflecting income related
Pension and Post-Employment Benefit Plans
to amortization of actuarial gains.
Complete financial information for the pension and post-employment benefit plans may be found in the Combined AgriBank, FCB Nonqualified Retirement Plan: We also participate in a District-wide
and Affiliated Associations 2011 Annual Report.
non-qualified defined benefit pension restoration plan. This plan
provides retirement benefits above the Internal Revenue Code
Pension Plan: Certain employees participate in a District-wide compensation limit to certain highly compensated eligible employmulti-employer defined benefit retirement plan. This Plan is non- ees. Benefits payable under this plan are offset by the benefits
contributory and covers eligible District employees. Benefits payable from the pension plan. Pension restoration plan expenses
are based on salary and years of service. The assets, liabilities included in “Salaries and employee benefits” in the Consolidated
and costs of the plan are not segregated by participating enti- Statements of Income were $260 thousand, $247 thousand, and
ties. Costs are determined for each individual employer based $204 thousand for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
on costs directly related to their current employees as well as
an allocation of the remaining costs based proportionately on Retirement Savings Plan
the estimated projected liability of the employer under this plan. We also participate in a retirement savings plan. For employees
We recognize our proportional share of expense and contribute hired before January 1, 2007, employee contributions are matched
a proportional share of funding. As a participant in this plan, we dollar for dollar up to 2% and 50 cents on the dollar on the next
contributed $5.6 million, $5.2 million, and $5.2 million for 2011, 4% on both pre-tax and post-tax contributions. The maximum
2010, and 2009, respectively. Plan expenses included in “Salaries employer match is 4%. For employees hired after December 31,
and employee benefits” in the Consolidated Statements of Income 2006, we contribute 3% of the employee’s compensation and will
were $8.7 million, $7.5 million, and $5.1 million for 2011, 2010, match employee contributions dollar for dollar up to a maximum
and 2009, respectively.
of 6% on both pre-tax and post-tax contributions. The maximum
employer contribution is 9%. Employer contributions under the
As disclosed in the Combined AgriBank, FCB and Affiliated plan were $3.0 million, $2.5 million, and $2.4 million in 2011, 2010,
Associations 2011 Annual Report, the defined benefit pension plan and 2009, respectively.
reflects an unfunded liability totaling $393.8 million at December
31, 2011. Our individual association increases our prepaid pension
asset when contributions are made and reduces our prepaid pension asset as annual expense is recorded. At December 31, 2011, to
reflect the $393.8 million unfunded liability on the District balance sheet, the District reversed the prepaid pension assets and
recorded the unfunded position as a liability with an offsetting RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
charge to accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI). The
$393.8 million unfunded liability represents potential future con- In the ordinary course of business, we may enter into loan transactributions that may need to be made by the participating employers. tions with our officers, directors, their immediate family members,
The $454.9 million recorded in AOCI represents future expense and other organizations with which such persons may be associthat may need to be recognized by the participating employers. The ated. Such transactions are subject to special approval requireamount ultimately to be contributed and the amount ultimately ments contained in Farm Credit Administration Regulations and
recognized as expense and the timing of those contributions and are made on the same terms, including interest rates, amortizaexpenses, are subject to many variables including performance tion schedules, and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
of plan assets and levels of interest rates. These variables could comparable transactions with other persons. In our opinion, none
result in actual contributions and expenses being greater than of these loans outstanding at December 31, 2011 involved more
or less than the amounts reflected in the District financial state- than a normal risk of collectability.
ments. Based on the District’s methodology for allocating expenses
and contributions at December 31, 2011, our estimated share of
the $454.9 million potential future expense would be approximately $87.7 million and our estimated share of the $393.8 million
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The following table represents information on loans and leases
to related parties as determined at each year end (in thousands):
A s o f D ece m b e r 31

Total related party loans and leases

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

$13,730

$27,815

$34,867

31, 2011, we had commitments to extend credit and unexercised
commitments related to standby letters of credit of $2.8 billion.
Additionally, we had $36.6 million of issued standby letters of
credit as of December 31, 2011.

fo r t h e y e a r e n d e d D ece m b e r 31

Commitments to extend credit and letters of credit generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and we may
require payment of a fee. If commitments and letters of credit
The composition of related parties can be different each year end remain unfulfilled or have not expired, they may have credit risk
due primarily to changes in the makeup of the Board of Directors. not recognized in the financial statements. Many of the commitAdvances and repayments to related parties at the end of each ments to extend credit and letters of credit will expire without
year are included in the preceding chart.
being fully drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitments do
not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Certain letAdditional transactions other than loans in the ordinary course of ters of credit may have recourse provisions that would enable us
business involving directors and senior officers include our dealer to recover from third parties amounts paid under guarantees,
credit program which provides financing for new or used equip- thereby limiting our maximum potential exposure. The credit
ment for an equipment dealership that is co-owned by Director risk involved in issuing these financial instruments is essentially
Brandon Robbins. All dealerships in the dealer credit program the same as that involved in extending loans to borrowers and we
are offered the same terms and conditions.
apply the same credit policies.
Advances to related parties
Repayments by related parties

$5,373
4,655

$15,060
13,279

$20,127
17,423

We purchase various services from AgriBank, including certain
information systems, financial services, accounting and reporting
services, human resource services, and retail product processing
and support services. The total cost of services we purchased from
AgriBank was $5.1 million, $4.8 million, and $5.1 million in 2011,
2010, and 2009, respectively. We purchase benefit and payroll FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
services from Farm Credit Foundations. Farm Credit Foundations
operated as a part of AgriBank prior to January 1, 2012, when it The FASB guidance on “Fair Value Measurement” defines fair
formed a service corporation and is no longer part of AgriBank. value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
The Farm Credit System entities using Farm Credit Foundations to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
as their payroll and benefits provider contributed an investment participants at the measurement date in the principal or most
into the service corporation in January 2012. Our investment was advantageous market for the asset or liability. The guidance also
$113 thousand.
establishes a fair value hierarchy, with three levels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value. See Note 2 for a more complete
description of the three input levels.
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Non-Recurring Basis

We do not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis at December 31, 2011, 2010 or 2009. We may
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair
value on a non-recurring basis. Information on assets measured
In the normal course of business, we have various contingent lia- at fair value on a non-recurring basis is as follows (in thousands):
bilities and commitments outstanding which may not be reflected A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 1
Fair Value Measurement Using
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. We do not
Total	Total
Fair	Gains
anticipate any material losses because of these contingencies or 		
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3	Value
(Losses)
commitments.
Loans
$—
$39,432
$— $39,432
$6,101
Other property owned

From time to time, we may be named as a defendant in certain lawsuits or legal actions in the normal course of business. At the date A s o f D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 01 0
of these consolidated financial statements, we were not aware of Loans
any such actions that would have a material impact on our finan- Other property owned
cial condition. However, such actions could arise in the future.
We have commitments to extend credit and letters of credit to
satisfy the financing needs of our borrowers. These financial
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk not
recognized in the financial statements. Commitments to extend
credit are agreements to lend to a borrower as long as there is
not a violation of any condition established in the loan contract.
Standby letters of credit are agreements to pay a beneficiary if
there is a default on a contractual arrangement. At December

—

—

31,521

31,521

(3,227)

$—
—

$56,111
—

$—
24,863

$56,111
24,863

$4,054
(401)

$—
—

$58,318
13,313

$2,727
89

$61,045 ($11,529)
13,402
12

A s o f D ece m b e r 31 , 2009

Loans
Other property owned
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Valuation Techniques

Loans: Represents the carrying amount and related write-downs
of loans which were evaluated for individual impairment based on
the appraised value of the underlying collateral. When the value of
the collateral, less estimated costs to sell, is less than the principal
balance of the loan, a specific reserve is established. Costs to sell
represent transaction costs and are not included as a component
of the asset’s fair value.
Other property owned: Represents the fair value and related losses
of foreclosed assets that were measured at fair value based on the
collateral value, which is generally determined using appraisals or
other indications based on sales of similar properties. Costs to sell
represent transaction costs and are not included as a component
of the asset’s fair value.

or regulatory factors not considered in the valuation, such as the
unique statutory rights of Farm Credit System borrowers, could
render our portfolio unmarketable outside the Farm Credit System.
We segregate the loan portfolio into pools of loans with homogenous characteristics for purposes of determining fair value of
accruing loans. Expected future cash flows and interest rates
reflecting appropriate credit risk are separately determined for
each individual pool.

Fair value of non-accrual loans, current as to principal and interest, are discounted with appropriately higher rates, reflecting
the uncertainty of continued cash flows. We assume that for noncurrent non-accrual loans, collection will result only from the sale
of the underlying collateral. Fair value is estimated to equal the
total net realizable value of the underlying collateral, discounted
The fair value measurement would fall under level 2 of the hierar- at an interest rate that appropriately reflects the uncertainty of
chy if the process uses independent appraisals and other market- the expected future cash flows over the average disposal period.
based information. The fair value measurement would fall under We use the legal obligation if the net realizable value of the collevel 3 of the hierarchy if the process requires significant input lateral exceeds the legal obligation for a particular loan.
based on management’s knowledge of and judgment about current market conditions, specific issues relating to the collateral, Investment securities: If an active market exists, the fair value is
and other matters.
based on currently quoted market prices. For those securities for
which an active market does not exist, we estimate the fair value of
these investments by discounting the expected future cash flows
using current interest rates adjusted for credit risk.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Quoted market prices are generally not available for our financial
instruments. Accordingly, we base fair values on:
• judgments regarding future expected losses,
• current economic conditions,
• risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
• credit risk, and
• other factors.
These estimates involve uncertainties and matters of judgment
and cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions
could significantly affect the estimates.
Estimating the fair value of our investment in AgriBank is not
practical because the stock is not traded. As discussed in Notes
2 and 4, the investment is a requirement of borrowing from
AgriBank.
A description of the methods and assumptions used to estimate
the fair value of each class of our financial instruments, for which
it is practical to estimate that value, follows:
Loans: The estimate of the fair value of loan assets is determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using current interest
rates. Current interest rates are estimated based on similar loans
made or loans repriced to borrowers with similar credit risk. This
methodology is used because no active market exists for the vast
majority of these loans. Since the discount rates are based upon
internal pricing mechanisms and other estimates, we cannot
determine whether the fair values presented would equal the exit
price negotiated in an actual sale. Furthermore, certain statutory
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Other earning assets: Other earning assets result from successorin-interest contracts from our involvement with the federal government’s tobacco buy-out program. We estimate the fair value of
these investments by discounting the expected future cash flows
using current interest rates.
Note payable to AgriBank: Estimating the fair value of the note
payable to AgriBank is determined by segregating the note into
pricing pools according to the types and terms of the underlying
loans funded. We discount the estimated cash flows from these
pools using the current rate charged by AgriBank for additional
borrowings with similar characteristics.
Commitments to extend credit and letters of credit: Estimating the
fair value of commitments and letters of credit is determined by
the inherent credit loss in such instruments.

The estimated fair value of our financial instruments is as follows (in thousands):
A s o f D ece m b e r 31
		

2 01 1

2 01 0

2009

Carrying amount	fair value	carrying amount	fair value	carrying amount	fair value

Financial assets
Loans, net
$14,929,916
Investment securities
1,410,903
Other earning assets
210,945
Financial liabilities
Note payable to AgriBank, FCB
$14,578,386
Unrecognized financial instruments
Commitments to extend credit
and letters of credit		

$15,234,463
1,390,234
219,986

$13,963,075
1,263,985
271,957

$14,180,145
1,244,382
272,670

$12,989,002
1,055,803
321,906

$13,324,235
1,043,935
321,338

$14,851,754

$13,800,593

$13,964,869

$12,830,842

$13,154,488

($3,751) 		

($4,259)

($3,497) 		
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly consolidated results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, follow (in thousands):
2011

Net interest income
Provision for (reversal of) loan losses
Patronage income
Other expense, net
Provision for income taxes
Net Income
2010

Net interest income
Provision for (reversal of) loan losses
Patronage income
Other expense, net
Provision for income taxes
Net Income
2009

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Patronage income
Other expense, net
Provision for income taxes
Net Income

FIRST	

$78,189
15,992
12,418
22,938
2,984
$48,693
FIRST	

$71,600
43,887
13,618
6,333
3,166
$31,832
FIRST	

$59,101
3,945
11,634
24,199
2,356
$40,235

SECOND 	THIRD

$75,621
6,963
12,090
25,529
2,380
$52,839

$80,295
(22,931)
12,105
20,730
4,537
$90,064

SECOND 	THIRD

$73,936
(12)
11,640
16,285
2,118
$67,185

$76,190
8,016
12,592
16,294
2,429
$62,043

SECOND 	THIRD

$62,531
19,996
11,078
24,308
1,634
$27,671

$65,029
15,479
10,564
28,044
831
$31,239

FOURTH 	TOTAL

$82,370
(10,440)
25,135
26,791
4,159
$86,995

$316,475
(10,416)
61,748
95,988
14,060
$278,591

FOURTH 	TOTAL

$82,752
43,193
41,059
21,511
6,215
$52,892

$304,478
95,084
78,909
60,423
13,928
$213,952

FOURTH 	TOTAL

$69,644
23,248
24,541
25,930
2,481
$42,526

$256,305
62,668
57,817
102,481
7,302
$141,671
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

We have evaluated subsequent events through March 15, 2012, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
There have been no material subsequent events that would require recognition in our 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements or
disclosures in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Disclosure Information Required by Regulations
(UNAUDITED)
Description of Business

Description of Capital Structure

General information regarding the business is discussed in
Note 1 of this annual report.

Information regarding our capital structure is discussed in
Note 8 of this annual report.

The description of significant business developments, if any, is
discussed in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” portion
of this annual report.

Information regarding liabilities is discussed in Notes 7, 9, 10, and
12 of this annual report.

Description of Property

There are 93 offices located throughout our territory making and
servicing long and short-term loans. We own 69 buildings and lease
24 office spaces. In addition to our central office facility, there are
92 sales offices which are supported by 7 special account units and
4 central processing units. A single building may house multiple
offices. In 5 of our owned facilities, we lease a portion of the office
space to third parties. The owned facilities have net book values
ranging between $28 thousand and $6.5 million. Currently there
are no buildings being held for resale. During 2011, construction was completed on a new facility for the replacement of the
Valparaiso, Indiana office.

Legal Proceedings

Information regarding legal proceedings is discussed in Note 12
of this annual report. We were not subject to any enforcement
actions at December 31, 2011.

Description of Liabilities

Selected Financial Data

The “Consolidated Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data”
is presented at the beginning of this annual report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Information regarding any material aspects of our financial condition, changes in financial condition, and results of operations are
discussed in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” portion
of this annual report.

Board of Directors

Information regarding directors who served as of December 31,
2011, including business experience in the last five years and
any other business interest where a director serves on the board
of directors or as a senior officer follows:

Name and Position

term of office			business experience and employment during past five years

George E. Stebbins
Chair

Third year of a four-year term

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, and weaner pigs)

Kevin Cox
Fourth year of a four-year term
Vice Chair		

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, alfalfa; feeder cattle);
trucking operation

Donald Blankenship
Fourth year of a four-year term
Secretary		

Self-employed farmer (vegetables, hay, corn, beans, wheat, custom
farming; beef cattle)

Dan B. Ashby
Third year of a four-year term
Director		

Self-employed farmer (beef, hay, fruit, and timber) and
commercial pilot

Barney Barnett
Outside Director

Retired (formerly president/owner of management recruiting business)

Second year of a four-year term

Robert E. Barton
Second year of a four-year term
Director		

Self-employed farmer (tobacco, corn, wheat, soybeans; background
cattle operation); country grain elevator co-owner

David A. Bates, III
Director

Third year of a four-year term

Self-employed farmer (dairy, beef; corn, wheat, barley, and alfalfa)

Ernie Diggs
Director

Second year of a four-year term

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, and cattle)

Roger D. Earley
Director

Second year of a four-year term

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, hay; beef cattle, brood
stock, heifers, and bulls)

Kathryn Eschbacher-Timberlake
First year of a two-year term
Director		

Part-time farmer (hay, corn, soybeans; Registered Polled Hereford
Cattle) and clerk for Indiana Department of Child Services

Dan E. Flanagan
First year of a four-year term
Director		
		
		

Self-employed farmer (poultry, grain, and produce); business owner
(sale/removal of chicken litter); former Deputy Commissioner of
Kentucky Department of Agriculture; former vice president of
Campbellsville University

David E. Hahn
Third year of a four-year term
Outside Director		
		
		

Professor, Department of Agricultural, Environmental and
Development Economics, College of Food, Agriculture, and 		
Environmental Sciences at The Ohio State University and part-time
farmer (grain)
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Name and Position

term of office			business experience and employment during past five years

Jimmy D. Mays
Director

Fourth year of a four-year term

Self-employed farmer (cattle)

James William Patterson
Fourth year of a four-year term
Director		

Manager, Fruit Farm Market (apples, strawberries, and peaches) and
vice president of Patterson Farms, Inc. (family farm operation)

Brandon Robbins
First year of a four-year term
Director		

Part-time farmer (cow-calf operation) and co-owner of Mountain
Farm International, LLC (equipment dealership)

Kaye Hurst Whitehead
First year of a four-year term
Director		

Full-time farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, hay; farrow-to-finish
hog operation)

Andrew Wilson
Director

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, hay; cattle, and hogs)

First year of a four-year term

Tony G. Wolfe
Second year of a four-year term
Director		
		

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, and beef cattle);
Gibson County councilman; former field representative for 		
Indiana Farm Bureau

Additional board involvement
by our board members includes:

From January 1, 2011, through February 28, 2011, our directors
were paid compensation in the form of an annual retainer paid
at the monthly rate of $1,825 for time spent in preparing and
Dan B. Ashby serves on the University of Tennessee Chancellor’s attending board meetings, advisory committee meetings, cusInstitute of Associates Board (education) and the University tomer appreciation meetings, governance or compensation comof Tennessee’s Institute of Agricultural Development Board mittee meetings and AgriBank annual meetings. Beginning March
(education).
1, 2011, the annual retainer paid was increased to a monthly rate
of $1,900. In addition, from January 1, 2011, through February
Barney Barnett serves on the Farm Credit Foundations Plan Sponsor
28, 2011, directors were compensated at the daily rate of $300
Committee (employee benefits).
for attendance at designated meetings not specified above but
Kevin Cox is a director of Parke County REMC (electric cooperative). set out by board policy. Beginning March 1, 2011, the daily rate
Dan E. Flanagan is a director of Kentucky Baptist Convention was increased to $350. Directors absent from a scheduled board
Board (religion), Kentucky Council of Agriculture (agriculture), meeting forfeited one-half of the monthly retainers. Directors
Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education Board (education), were also reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in connection with attending such meetings.
and National Farm Credit Council Board (agriculture).
James William Patterson is a director of Geauga County Farm Bureau
(agriculture) and is a trustee for the Ohio Farm Bureau Federation
(agriculture).
George E. Stebbins is a director of Montgomery County Farm Bureau
(agriculture).
Kaye Hurst Whitehead serves as a director of the Delaware County
Farm Bureau (agriculture) and the Delaware County Pork
Producers (agriculture).

In 2011, the Board Chairperson received $800 per month, the
Vice Chairperson received $200 per month, and the Secretary
received $400 per month for the additional time commitments of
their positions. From January 1, 2011, through February 28, 2011,
Board audit committee members received $300 for attendance
at full meetings and $150 for telephone conference call meetings. Beginning March 1, 2011, Board audit committee members
received $350 for attendance at full meetings and $175 for telephone conference call meetings.

Tony G. Wolfe is director of Gibson County Farm Bureau (agriculture) and a director of the Indiana Association of Counties (county
government advocacy); Gibson County Chamber of Commerce
(county tourism/development); Shiloh Church Cemetery Board
(community organization); and Selective Service Board (military).
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Information regarding compensation for each director who served during 2011 follows:
number of days served1
compensation paid
for service on a
board committee

name of
committee

total compensation
paid in 20111

Dan B. Ashby
15.0
26.0
			

$700
350

Credit Review Committee
Governance

$27,393

Barney Barnett
16.0
22.0
			

1,700
175

Audit
Risk Management

26,193

Robert E. Barton
16.0
17.5 		
				

1,175
1,225

Audit
Credit Review Committee

26,018

11.5

350

Credit Review Committee

23,618

Donald Blankenship
16.0
24.5
			

1,350
350

Audit
Credit Review Committee

28,268

Kevin Cox
16.0
20.0
			
			
			

175
1,350
350
175

Governance
Audit
Credit Review Committee
Risk Management

26,968

board
meetings

David A. Bates, III

14.0

other official
activities

Ernie Diggs

16.0

12.0 			

24,668

Roger D. Earley

16.0

19.5

Credit Review Committee

25,368

5.0

2.5			

6,068

Dan E. Flanagan

16.0

31.5 			

26,768

David E. Hahn

16.0

15.0

350

Nominating

23,618

Jimmy D. Mays
16.0
21.5
			

350
350

Tellers
Credit Review Committee

23,968

James William Patterson
16.0
20.0
			
			

1,700
175
350

Audit
Governance
Credit Review Committee

28,168

2.5 			

6,068

Kathryn Eschbacher-Timberlake3

Brandon Robbins 3

5.0

George E. Stebbins
16.0
21.0
			
Kaye Hurst Whitehead3

5.0

350

1,175
350

Audit
Credit Review Committee

31,693

1.5 			

6,068

Andrew Wilson
16.0
8.0
			

175
175

Governance
Risk Management

23,618

Tony G. Wolfe

16.0

21.0

350

Audit

24,318

Glen Hutchinson 2

11.0

17.0

300

Credit Review Committee

17,868

3.0

7.5 			

5,318

11.0

28.0 			

26,168

Matt Walther4
Ed Yanos2
Total

277.0

350.0

$15,575 		

$458,203

The number of board meeting days and per diem totals include travel time to and from meetings.
Term expired during 2011.
3
Elected to Board of Directors effective October 14, 2011.
4
Resigned March 2011 and subsequently elected to the AgriBank Board of Directors

1

2

Directors that serve on the Credit Review Committee are not involved in making any credit decisions. Rather, they review, at the
request of the customer, adverse credit decisions made by the association.
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Senior officers

The senior officers (and the date each began his/her current position) include:
Name 	position		

business experience and employment during past five years

William L. Johnson

President and Chief Executive Officer	Vice President of Operations/Information Services for AgriBank from
August 2006 to March 2009; Senior Vice President and Chief Risk
Information Officer for AgriBank from March 2009 to January 2011;
Executive Vice President of Business Services for AgriBank from
January 2011 to February 2011; President and Chief Executive OfficerElect of Farm Credit Services of Mid-America from March 2011 to May
2011; President and Chief Executive Officer of Farm Credit Services of
Mid-America from May 2011 to present.

Randall Barnard

Senior Vice President – Risk Management

Paul C. Bruce Jr.

Senior Vice President – Financial
Vice President – Loan Accounting from June 1994 to February
Operations and Chief Financial Officer	2003; Senior Vice President – Financial Operations and Chief
Financial Officer from March 2003 to present.

Heather Hornback

Senior Vice President – Human Capital	Director of Training and Development from April 2001 to December
2008; Vice President – Human Resources from January 2009 to
February 2012. Senior Vice President — Human Capital from
March 2012 to present.

Philip W. Kimmel

Senior Vice President – Credit	Senior Vice President – Business Development from April 2000 to
December 2007;Senior Vice President – Credit from January 2008
to present.

Keith A. Lane

Senior Vice President – Agribusiness	Vice President – AgriBusiness and Dealer Credit from March 2007 to
October 2011; Senior Vice President – AgriBusiness from November
2011 to present.

David Lynn

Senior Vice President – Financial Services	Senior Vice President – Financial Services from September 2002 to present.

Richard T. Poe

Senior Vice President – Financial Services	Vice President – Financial Services from August 1999 to June 2007;
Senior Vice President – Financial Services from July 2007 to present.

Nancy J. Sparrow

General Counsel	Associate General Counsel from March 2001 to June 2008; General
Counsel from June 2008 to present.

 ice President – Internal Audit from October 1999 to February 2010;
V
Senior Vice President – Risk Management from March 2010 to present.

Additional business interest involvement by our senior officers includes:
Randall Barnard is a partner of Barnard Farm (family farming operation).
Paul C. Bruce Jr. serves on the Farm Credit Foundations Plan Sponsor Committee (employee benefits).
A summary of compensation earned by senior officers follows (in thousands):
name of individual

William L. Johnson, CEO
Donald W. Winters, CEO1
Donald W. Winters, CEO
Donald W. Winters, CEO
Aggregate number of senior officers, excluding CEO
Nine2
Nine3
Seven
1

Mr. Winters retired August 2011.

2

Includes senior officer who retired February 2011.

3

Includes senior officer who retired July 2010.

Year	

Salary	

Bonus	

Deferred/ Perquisites	

2011
2011
2010
2009

$385
429
396
391

$155
—
146
117

$7
12
8
9

$119
7
—
—

Other	Total

$666
448
550
517

2011
2010
2009

$1,440
1,556
1,339

$373
410
331

$22
21
14

$—
—
—

$1,835
1,987
1,684

The amount included in “Other” in the preceding table represents compensation paid related to monetary and non-monetary gifts for
the retirement of Mr. Winters which was effective August 31, 2011, as well as the relocation of Mr. Johnson who became President and
Chief Executive Officer-Elect effective March 16, 2011. Mr. Johnson became President and Chief Executive Officer effective May 1, 2011.
Members may request information on the compensation paid during 2011 to the individuals included in the preceding table.
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The CEO’s incentives are based in part on an individual performance rating established by the Board of Directors. Senior officer
incentives are based in part on individual performance ratings
established by the CEO. The remainder of the CEO and senior officers’ incentives is based on corporate performance criteria established by the Board of Directors. The corporate criteria includes:
loan growth, credit quality, credit administration, and net operating rate. We calculate the incentives after the end of the plan
year (the plan year is the calendar year). We pay out the incentives
within 90 days of year end.

Transactions With Senior Officers and Directors

Information regarding related party transactions is discussed in
Note 11 of this annual report.

Member Privacy

Farm Credit Administration Regulations protect members’ nonpublic personal financial information. Our directors and employees are restricted from disclosing information about our association or our members not normally contained in published reports
or press releases.

Relationship With Qualified Public Accountant

There were no changes in independent auditors since the last
annual report to members and we are in agreement with the opinion expressed by the independent auditors. The total fees paid during 2011 were $175 thousand. The fees paid were for audit services.

Financial Statements

The “Report of Management,” “Report on Internal Control Over
Travel, Subsistence and Other Related Expenses
Financial Reporting,” “Report of Audit Committee,” “Report of
Directors and senior officers are reimbursed for reasonable travel, Independent Auditors,” “Consolidated Financial Statements,“ and
subsistence, and other related expenses associated with business “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” are presented prior
functions. A copy of our policy for reimbursing these costs is avail- to this portion of the annual report.
able by contacting us at:
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA
P.O. Box 34390
Louisville, Kentucky 40232
(800) 444-FARM
www.e-farmcredit.com

Credit and Services to Young, Beginning and Small Farmers
and Ranchers

Information regarding credit and services to young, beginning, and small farmers and ranchers and producers or
harvesters of aquatic products is discussed in an addendum to
this annual report.

The total directors’ travel, subsistence, and other related expenses Equal Opportunity Employment
were $180 thousand, $141 thousand, and $130 thousand in 2011, We are an equal opportunity employer. It is our policy to provide
2010, and 2009, respectively.
equal employment opportunity to all persons regardless of race,
national origin, religion, age, sex, disability, marital status, veteran
Involvement In Certain Legal Proceedings
status, public assistance status, or any other condition or status
No events occurred during the past five years that are material covered by law. We comply with all state and local equal employto evaluating the ability or integrity of any person who served ment opportunity regulations. We conduct all personnel decisions
as a director or senior officer on January 1, 2012, or at any time and processes relating to our employees and job applicants in an
during 2011.
environment free of discrimination and harassment.
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Important Information on FCS Funds Held Program
The Association offers a Funds Held Program (Funds Held) that
provides for customers to make uninsured advance payments
on loans. The following terms and conditions apply to all Funds
Held unless the loan agreement, or related documents, between
the Association and the customer provide for other limitations.

Commercial loans, with the exception of lines of credit, are paid
a rate of interest similar to short-term money market rates. The
rate was 0.40% as of January 1, 2012.

Withdrawals

Loan payments received by the Association before the loan has
been billed will normally be placed into Funds Held and applied
against the next installment date. Loan payments received after
the loan has been billed will be directly applied to the installment
due on the loan and related charges, if any. Funds received in
excess of the billed amount will be placed into Funds Held unless
the customer has specified the funds to be applied as a special
prepayment of principal.

Money in Funds Held may be withdrawn for the following items,
depending on the customer’s loan program.
• Customers may request that Funds Held or interest on Funds
Held be applied to their loan balance at any time.
• Customers with real estate and commercial loans may use Funds
Held for future installments or insurance. In addition, customers
may make up to four additional withdrawals for other approved
purposes in lieu of increasing the loan amount. These four withdrawals have a minimum size limit of the lesser of $500 or the
remaining balance in Funds Held in a 12-month period.

When a loan installment becomes due, moneys in Funds Held for
the loan will be automatically applied toward the installment on
the due date. Any accrued interest on Funds Held will be applied
first. If the balance in Funds Held does not fully satisfy the entire
installment, the customer must pay the difference by the installment due date.

In the event of default on any loan, or if Funds Held exceeds the
maximum limit as established above, or if the Association discontinues its Funds Held program, the Association may apply funds
in the account to the unpaid balance and other amounts due, and
shall return any excess funds to the customer.

Payment Application

Account Maximum

The amount in Funds Held may never exceed the unpaid principal
balance of the loan. Many loans have a further limit equal to the
total payments due for the next year. In addition, Funds Held on
loans with certain prepayment penalties may not exceed 10% of
the original principal balance. Funds Held is generally not available on revolving lines of credit loans.

Interest Rate

Association Options

If the customers sell, assign, or transfer any interest in the underlying collateral, the Association may apply the funds in the account
against the remaining loan balance.
If all customers who are party to the loan are deceased, the
Association may apply the funds in the account to the remaining
loan balance.

Uninsured Account

Interest will accrue on Funds Held at a simple rate of interest
that may be changed by the association from time to time. But
the rate will not exceed the interest rate charged on the related
loan except in rare cases. The current interest rate is based upon
the following criteria:

Funds Held is not a depository account and is not insured. In the
event of Association liquidation, customers having balances in
Funds Held shall be notified according to FCA regulations then
in effect.

Real estate loans closed under the loan program in effect prior to
October 1, 1994, are paid a rate of interest equal to the loan rate.

Please direct all questions regarding Funds Held to your local FCS
representative by calling 1-800-444-FARM (3276).

Questions

Real estate loans closed under the loan program in effect on
October 1, 1994, and later are paid a rate of interest similar
to short-term money market rates. The rate was 0.40% as of
January 1, 2012.
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Young, Beginning and Small Farmers and Ranchers
The Board of Directors has approved a policy to serve the credit and
related needs of young, beginning and small farmers and ranchers
(YBS) in our territory. The definitions of YBS as developed by the
Farm Credit Administration (FCA) follow:
• Young: A farmer, rancher, or producer or harvester of aquatic
products who is age 35 or younger as of the loan transaction date.
• Beginning: A farmer, rancher, or producer or harvester of aquatic
products who has 10 years or less farming or ranching experience as of the loan transaction date.
• Small: A farmer, rancher, or producer or harvester of aquatic
products who normally generates less than $250 thousand in
annual gross sales of agricultural or aquatic products.

Demographics

We have used the 2007 USDA Ag Census as our source of demographic data for Young, Beginning and Small Farmers (YBS). There
are 301,339 farms in the four state territory of Indiana, Kentucky,
Ohio, and Tennessee. Of that number, there are 17,439 young farmers (or 5.8%); 76,052 beginning farmers (or 25.2%); and 282,415
small farmers (or 93.7%). The census data is as of 2007 whereas
our portfolio data is based on the number of current YBS customers and/or loans in the current year.

Mission Statement

Our mission for the Young, Beginning and Small Farmer Program
is to provide sound and constructive credit to meet the needs of the
next generation of young, beginning and small farmers by offering
standard or special programs targeted to this group.

Targets and Goals

Total Loan Portfolio

The goal of the young farmer program is to maintain the percentage that young farmers represent of the total farm members in
our portfolio at 25% or higher; the goal of the beginning farmer
program is to maintain the percentage that beginning farmers
represent of the total farm members in our portfolio at 45% or
higher; the goal of the small farmer program is to maintain the
percentage that small farmers represent of the total farm members in our portfolio at 70% or higher.
In 2011, there were 77,487 farm members in our portfolio. Of
that number, there were 21,941 young farmers; 39,808 beginning
farmers; and 65,653 small farmers. These numbers surpass the
goals as follows:
			

% of Member Base

		A c t u a l 	G o a l

Young
Beginning
Small

New Loan Portfolio

28.3%
51.4%
84.7%

25.0%
45.0%
70.0%

Safety and Soundness of the Program

It is the responsibility of the President and Chief Executive Officer
or his designee for development of appropriate standards and procedures to support implementation of this policy and special programs approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
reviews the ongoing adequacy of this policy at least annually and
monitors progress on a quarterly basis.
Management has developed a young, beginning and small farmer
program that provides sound and constructive credit through
standard or special programs targeted to this group.

YBS Program Features

We implemented a young, beginning and small farmer and rancher
program with four components, all of which will continue in 2012:
• Special underwriting program for young and beginning farmers. In 2011, we provided special underwriting standards on 77
loans representing $11.8 million in loan volume.
• Farm Service Agency (FSA) loan guarantee reimbursement of
50% for young or beginning farmers. In 2011, we waived its
origination fees and reimbursed members 50% of their FSA
guarantee fees on 65 loans representing almost $160 thousand
in reimbursed FSA fees.
• Working with small and part-time farmers to help them invest
in diversified businesses and other assets that maintain and
strengthen the infrastructure of rural communities. In 2011,
we made 346 loans representing $52.1 million in loan volume, to
small and part-time farmers for diversified investment purposes.
• Reimbursement of up to $500 (one time only) to young or beginning members who attend business, production, financial management, or agricultural leadership development programs that
will help them in their farm business. In 2011, almost $6 thousand in farm business educational expenses were reimbursed.

Stewardship and Sponsorships

In 2011, we held numerous grain marketing and crop seminars
attended by YBS customers throughout our territory. We also
supported young people by providing more than $115,000 in scholarships to students from Indiana, Kentucky, Ohio, and Tennessee
enrolled in college programs related to agriculture careers. The
Board has a “stewardship philosophy” that contributed an additional $1.4 million in programs and gifts (for a total of more than
$1.5 million) that benefitted rural communities, young people,
commodity groups, and other agricultural organizations. Staff
members also participated in and supported organizations like
FFA, 4-H, and Young Farmer groups by conducting training and
education sessions to help the next generation of farmers.

Outreach and Education

In 2011, more than 40 customers attended the alumni session of the
Executive Institute for Commercial Producers, a day-long learning
session hosted by us and coordinated by Purdue University. Also
sponsored by us, an additional 35 customers attended the DTN Ag
Summit, a three-day agriculture outlook session held in Chicago.

The Association has also set a goal that 20% or more of new loans
or leases will be closed to young farm customers; 30% or more of
new loans or leases will be closed to beginning farmers; and 60%
or more of new loans or leases will be closed to small farm customWe sponsored specific university programs designed to attract
ers. These numbers surpass the goals as follows:
and retain young people in the field of agriculture. The Kentucky
			
% of Member Base
Ag Leadership Program (KALP), conducted by the University of
		A c t u a l 	G o a l
Kentucky, is an 18-month program designed for young agricultural
Young
22.0%
20.0%
producers and agribusiness individuals who want to be on the cutBeginning
31.8%
30.0%
ting edge of decisions that impact agriculture, rural communities,
Small
66.0%
60.0%
and the society. Additionally, we are one of five founding partners
in Purdue’s Center for Commercial Agriculture, and are a member
of the council with the objective of becoming the leading source of
management education, and knowledge generation for farmers.
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Notice to Customers Concerning Investments
This notice contains information about your stock investment in
Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA (Association). Please
read it carefully and make sure you understand both the benefits
and risks of an investment in the Association.
Association Capitalization Bylaws (a copy of which is included as
part of this publication) require an investment in stock or participation certificates in the amount of 2% of the loan amount or
$1,000, whichever is less, when obtaining a loan from either of
its wholly owned subsidiaries, the Farm Credit Services of MidAmerica, FLCA (FLCA) or the Farm Credit Services of Mid-America,
PCA (PCA). The Association’s Board of Directors (Board) has the
discretion to apply the stock requirement on a per-customer basis
or a per-loan basis. Currently, the stock requirement is on a per
customer basis.
The Association also sells stock or participation certificates to any
eligible customer of the FLCA or PCA as a condition of obtaining
a lease and as a condition for purchasing related services. The
amount of stock or participation certificates required may range
from one share to no more than the requirement for obtaining a
loan, at the discretion of the Board. At this time, the Board has
decided to require one share for both leasing and related services.
The voting stock issued by the Association is called “Class D Stock”
(Stock) and is issued only to farmers, ranchers and producers or
harvesters of aquatic products. Other persons who are eligible to
borrow or lease from or purchase financially related services with
the FLCA or PCA, but who are not eligible to own Stock, must purchase “Participation Certificates” (Certificates), which are issued
on essentially the same terms as Stock except as described below.
Stock and Certificates issued as a condition of doing business with
the Association (which may include stock issued in connection with
loan renewals, assumptions, refinancing, etc.) are an investment
in the Association that is at risk and not a compensating balance.

How Stock and Certificates are Purchased

Shares of Stock (and units of Certificates) are sold for their par
value (or face amount) of $5 each and can be paid for either with
cash or with the proceeds of a loan.
When the purchase price is borrowed, the amount of the FLCA
and/or PCA loan includes the cost of the Stock or Certificates and
interest is charged on the entire loan. The portion of the FLCA or
PCA loan proceeds attributable to the purchase price of the Stock
or Certificates is withheld and applied to the purchase price of the
Stock or Certificates. The total amount of the loan, including the
portion used to pay for the Stock or Certificates, is a legally enforceable obligation that must be repaid in full. The Association does
not issue physical certificates for Stock or Certificates. Instead,
the ownership of Stock or Certificates is evidenced by entries
recorded on the combined books of the Association as reflected
in periodic account statements sent to each customer.

Certain Important Characteristics
of Stock and Certificates

The principal difference between Stock and Certificates is that
the Stock entitles its holder to one vote (regardless of how many
shares are owned) with respect to the election of Association
directors and other matters on which stockholders are entitled

to vote. Holders of Certificates have no voting rights. In all other
respects, Stock and Certificates have substantially the same rights
and restrictions.
Association bylaws provide that dividends may be paid on Stock
or Certificates with the approval of the Board. Dividends may not
be paid if, after or due to such action, the permanent capital of the
Association would thereafter fail to meet the minimum capital
adequacy standards established by FCA.
The FLCA or PCA takes a lien on the Stock or Certificates held by
a customer as additional security for the customer’s loan. If the
customer defaults, the value of the customer’s investment (not
to exceed par value, or face amount) may be applied against the
balance due on the loan. If the customer’s Stock or Certificates
are transferred, they are still subject to this lien. In any event,
Stock and Certificates are transferable only to persons eligible
to purchase such equities.
Stock and Certificates do not appreciate in value. Any retirement
or conversion will be at their original issue price or, if less, their
book value. The possibility that this investment may result in a
loss is discussed below under the heading “Impairment.”

Retirement of Stock and Certificates

Under Association bylaws, Stock and Certificates are retired only
at the discretion of the Board. Stock is retired at the lower of book
value or par value, while Certificates are retired at the lower of
book value or face amount. Book value will be determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
Under Federal Law, there is no automatic right to have Stock or
Certificates retired upon repayment of the customer’s loan or
when the customer ceases to conduct other business with the
FLCA and/or PCA.
Under the Association’s existing Equity Policy, equity is on a customer basis and is required on existing fixed, adjustable or variable rate loans originated after July 1, 1995, in an amount not less
than two percent or $1,000, whichever is less, according to the
customer’s total loan balances (when the customer is the same
on each loan).
Equity of one share is required on a lease or for a non-customer to
qualify for related services.
The Equity Policy may be amended by the Board at any time at
their sole discretion and in accordance with the Act, Regulations
and Bylaws.
Effective 01/01/03, the Board’s policy permits the retirement
of customer equity only if the Association’s permanent capital
percentage is above the Board’s stated minimum, established
annually. The Board allows stock to be retired by management
provided that retirements are in accordance with the Association's
capital plan; the Association's permanent capital ratio will be in
excess of 12 percent after any such retirements; the Association
meets and maintains all applicable minimum surplus and collateral standards; and the aggregate amount of stock purchases
and retirements are reported to the Board of Directors monthly.
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notice to customers concerning investments

Except for loans in default, customer equity may be retired under
any of the following conditions:
• the customer’s indebtedness for a loan or a lease is totally
paid off,
• a non-borrower is no longer a purchaser of related services or
• the customer’s loan is sold into the secondary market without
recourse.
The retirement policy may be suspended or modified at any time
at the discretion of the Board in order to protect the financial
condition of the Association.
The Association is prohibited from retiring Stock or Certificates
if such retirement results in the Association’s failure to satisfy
the minimum capital adequacy standards established by the FCA.
Of course, even though you may be given the opportunity to have
your stock retired, you are not required to retire your Stock or
Certificates after repaying your FLCA and/or PCA loan and may
continue to hold this investment. However, if you do not borrow
from the FLCA and/or PCA during the following two years, your
Class D Stock will be converted into non-voting Class C Stock.

Impairment

Your ownership of Stock or Certificates in the Association is an
investment and is subject to certain risks that could result in a partial or complete loss of investment. You are responsible for repayment of the entire amount of the FLCA and/or PCA loan, including
the amount borrowed to pay for your Stock or Certificates, regardless of the value of your Stock or Certificates. These risks include:
• loan losses experienced by the FLCA and/or PCA as a result of
inadequate evaluation of credit risks or adverse trends in agriculture, such as loss of international markets, over-production,
weather conditions or disease,
• i ncreases in the amount of non-accrual FLCA and/or PCA loans
and properties acquired from borrowers that reduce revenues, and
• i mpairment of AgriBank, FCB’s (Bank) stock owned by the
Association due to losses in other associations within the district, loan losses and operating expenses of the Bank and the
Bank’s joint and several liabilities on Systemwide debt securities issues by other Banks in the national Farm Credit System.
As a result of these or any other risks, the capital of the Association
could become impaired. Impairment means that the book value
of the Stock or Certificates has declined below par value (or face
value), which is $5 per share or unit. (For example, if the Association
were to suffer loan losses which exceeded its other income, its bad
debt reserve and its surplus accounts, the Stock and Certificates
could have a book value less than $5 and thus would be impaired.)
As long as the capital of the Association is impaired, its customers
would receive less than they had paid for their stock upon retirement. If the Association were to be liquidated at the time when its
capital is impaired, holders of Stock or Certificates would receive
less than the par value or face amount of their investment and may
suffer a total loss of their investment in the Association. However,
in any event, customers would remain liable for the full amount of
their loan from the FLCA and/or PCA, including the portion used
to pay for the purchase of Stock or Certificates.
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Of course, the Association will take all feasible action to prevent its
capital from becoming impaired. The FLCA and PCA maintain loss
reserves (and surplus accounts) to protect against this possibility.
The Farm Credit Act provides a mechanism for providing financial assistance to distressed Farm Credit System entities. This
mechanism is described in the Association’s 2011 Annual Report.
However, the assistance mechanisms in the Farm Credit Act
provide no assurance to customers that Stock and Certificates
will be protected. Therefore members are advised to review the
financial statements of the Association and of the Bank and other
available information about the Farm Credit System. Copies of
the Association and the Bank’s Annual and Interim Reports to
Investors are available from the Association upon request.

Association Permanent Capital Standards

The Association presently meets its minimum permanent capital
standard. The Association does not know of any reason it will not
meet its permanent capital standard on the next earnings distribution date, though no earnings distribution date is scheduled.

Capitalization Bylaws
Article Viii - Capitalization
800	Authorized Shares

and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
(d)	Stock Protection: When retiring Class A Preferred Stock
in accordance with the Act, Regulations and these
Bylaws, the stock shall be retired at par value.
(e)	Fractional Shares: No fractional shares of Class A
Preferred Stock shall be issued or paid.

The Association is authorized to issue:
(a)	one million (1,000,000) shares of Class C Preferred
Stock with a par value of $5 per share to be issued as
provided in Section 810.3 of these Bylaws;
(b)	a n unlimited number of shares of Class D Common
Stock with a par value of $5 per share to be issued as
provided in Sections 810.4 and 845.2 of these Bylaws;
(c)	the outstanding number of Participation Certificates
as of the Merger Date, of FLBA 4th, FLBA B and FLBA
M and PCA 4th issued prior to October 6, 1988, which 810.2	Class B Common Stock
were converted by book entry at the par, face or stated
(a)	Issue: There shall be no Class B Common Stock issued
value of $5 per unit into a like number of Class A
other than those shares issued as a result of the conParticipation Certificates of the Association;
version of FLBA 4th, FLBA B and FLBA M's voting stock
(d)	
a n unlimited number of Class B Participation
and PCA 4th's Class B voting stock as of the Merger
Certificates, with a face value of $5 per unit to be
date.
issued as provided in Section 810.6 of these Bylaws;
(b)	Voting Rights: Class B Common Stock shall have voting
and
rights.
(e)	such number of shares of such other classes of Capital
(c)	Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
Stock as may be provided for in an amendment or
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
amendments to these Bylaws as adopted pursuimpairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
ant to Article XIV, provided, however, if the class
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
being proposed in any amendment or amendments
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
is for Preferred Stock other than Preferred Stock
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
to be issued to the Farm Credit System's Financial
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
Assistance Corporation, it shall be approved by major(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
ity of the shares of each class of stock affected by
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
the preference, voting as a class, whether or not such
(d) Stock Protection: When retiring Class B Common Stock
classes are otherwise authorized to vote.
in accordance with the Act, Regulations and these
Bylaws, the stock shall be retired at par value.
805	Ownership
(e)	Fractional Shares: No fractional shares of Class B
	Evidence of ownership of Capital Stock and Participation
Common Stock shall be issued or paid.
Certificates may be by book entry or in definitive form
as prescribed by the Board.
810.3	Class C Preferred Stock
(a)	Issue: This stock may be issued in accordance with the
	In the event of an Authorization Event under Section 210
Act and Regulations:
hereof, a borrower’s required investment in Association 		 1. To the bank and to investors;
stock/participation certificates (and the required conver- 		 2.	In such amounts and to such persons as may be
sion of such investment into a different class of equity)
permitted under a plan adopted by the Board;
shall be determined by reference to the borrowing rela- 		 3.	For allocated surplus distributions, dividend paytionship with MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case
ments, and patronage distributions; and
may be. Accordingly, upon an Authorization Event, all 		 4. In accordance with Section 845.2 of these Bylaws.
references to loans and outstanding loan balances in this
(b)	Voting Rights: Class C Preferred Stock shall have no
Article shall refer to aggregate loans held or originated
voting rights.
by Association, MidAm, PCA and MidAm, FLCA.
(c)	Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
810	Issue, Rights, Preferences and Limitations of
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
Classes of Stock
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
810.1	Class A Preferred Stock
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
(a)	Issue: There shall be no Class A Preferred Stock issued
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
other than those shares issued as a result of the con840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
version on Merger Date of PCA 4th's Class A non-voting
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
stock or a conversion in accordance with Section 845.2
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
of these Bylaws.
(d)	Fractional Shares: No fractional shares of Class C
(b)	Voting Rights: Class A Preferred Stock shall have no
Preferred Stock shall be issued or paid.
voting rights.
(c)	Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage 810.4	Class D Common Stock
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
(a)	Issue: Class D Common Stock may only be issued to
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
borrowers who are farmers, ranchers or producers
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or harvesters of aquatic products and other requirements of such borrowers as specified in the Act and
Regulations.
(b)	Voting Rights: Class D Common Stock shall have voting
rights.
(c)	Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
(d)	Fractional Shares: No fractional shares of Class D
Common Stock shall be issued or paid.
(e) Condition to Borrowing:
		 1.	A ny borrower who is entitled to own Class D
Common Stock shall acquire voting stock in the
Association as a condition for obtaining a loan from
the Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA. The
amount of Class D Common Stock which a borrower
shall be required to acquire shall be two (2) percent
of the loan amount or $1,000, whichever is less. The
Board shall establish from time to time whether
the stock requirement shall apply to each loan to
a borrower or apply to a borrower’s aggregate outstanding loan balance on all borrower’s loans (as
used in this section shall only include those loans,
including the new loan, where the borrowers are
the same on each loan).
		 2.	If the Association fails to meet the minimum permanent capital standards the Class D Common Stock
shall be purchased from the Association.
		 3.	Loan origination fees may be charged as a condition
of borrowing from the Association, MidAm, PCA or
MidAm, FLCA as the Board from time to time may
determine.
(f)	
Condition to Lease: As a condition of obtaining a lease
from Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA any
lessee who is entitled to own Class D Common Stock
shall be required to acquire Class D Common Stock
in an amount as determined by the Board from time
to time. The equity requirement to be not less than
one share or the minimum requirement as set out in
the Act and Regulations, if any, and not to exceed the
equity requirement for obtaining a loan.

810.5	Class A Participation Certificates

(a)	Issue: There shall be no Class A Participation
Certificates issued other than those units issued as
a result of the conversion of FLBA 4th, FLBA B, FLBA
M and PCA 4th's Participation Certificates as of the
Merger Date.
(b)	Voting Rights: Class A Participation Certificates shall
have no voting rights.
(c)	Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
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(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
(d)	Protection of Participation Certificates: When retiring
Class A Participation Certificates in accordance with
the Act, Regulations and these Bylaws, the units shall
be retired at par value.
(e)	Fractional Units: No fractional units of Class A
Participation Certificates shall be issued or paid.

810.6	Class B Participation Certificates

(a)	Issue: Class B Participation Certificates may be issued
in accordance with the Act and Regulations:
		 1.	To borrowers who are rural residents to capitalize
their rural housing loans.
		 2.	To borrowers who are persons or organizations
furnishing to farmers and ranchers farm related
services directly related to their agricultural production, to capitalize their loans.
		 3.	To other persons or organizations who are eligible
to borrow or participate in loans from Association,
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA but are not eligible
to hold voting stock.
		 4.	For allocated surplus distributions, dividend payments, and patronage distributions.
		 5.	To any person who is not a stockholder but who is
eligible to borrow from Association, MidAm, PCA
or MidAm, FLCA for the purpose of qualifying
such person for technical assistance, financially
related services, and leasing services offered by
Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA.
(b)	Voting Rights: Class B Participation Certificates shall
have no voting rights.
(c)	Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
(d)	Fractional Units: No fractional units of Class B
Participation Certificates shall be issued or paid.
(e) Condition to Borrowing:
		 1.	
A ny borrower who is entitled to own Class
B Participation Certificates shall acquire
Participation Certificates as a condition for
obtaining a loan from Association, MidAm, PCA or
MidAm, FLCA. The amount of Class B Participation
Certificates which a borrower shall acquire shall
be two (2) percent of the loan amount or $1,000,
whichever is less. The Board shall establish from
time to time whether the certificate requirement
shall apply to each loan to a borrower or apply to
a borrower’s aggregate outstanding loan balance
on all borrower’s loans (as used in this section shall
only include those loans, including the new loan,

where the borrowers are the same on each loan).
surplus account. Except as provided in Section 815, the
2.	If the Association fails to meet the minimum perunallocated surplus account may not be reduced and no
manent capital standards, the Class B Participation
part thereof may be transferred to the allocated surplus
Certificates shall be purchased from the
account.
Association.
		 3.	Loan origination fees may be charged as a condition 825	Allocated Surplus Accounts
of borrowing as the Board from time to time may 825.1 T he Association may, subject to the Act and the
determine.
Regulations, create and maintain an allocated
(f)	
Condition to Lease or Purchase of Financially Related
surplus account consisting of earnings held therein
Services: As a condition of obtaining a lease or purand allocated to borrowers on a patronage basis in
chasing financially related services from Association,
accordance with Section 835 of these Bylaws. In the
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA any lessee or purchaser
event of a net loss for any fiscal year, such allocated
of financially related services who is entitled to own
surplus account shall be subject to impairment in the
Class B Participation Certificates shall be required
order specified in Section 815.2 of these Bylaws, and on
to acquire Class B Participation Certificates in an
the basis of latest allocations first.
amount as determined by the Board from time to time.
The equity requirement to be not less than one share 825.2 A ssociation, MidAm, PCA and MidAm, FLCA shall have
or the minimum requirement as set out in the Act
a first lien on all surplus account allocations owned
and Regulations, if any, and not to exceed the equity
by any borrower, and all distributions thereof, as
requirement for obtaining a loan.
additional collateral for such borrower's indebtedness
to Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the
815	Application of Earnings or Losses
case may be.
815.1 At the end of each fiscal year, the Association shall
apply its earnings (including patronage allocations and 825.3 W hen the debt of a borrower is in default or is in
refunds received from the FCB) for such fiscal year in
the process of final liquidation, the Association
the following order:
may, upon notice to the borrower, order any and all
(a)	to cover operating expenses, including additions to
surplus account allocations owned by such borrower
loan valuation reserves as provided by law;
to be applied against the indebtedness to Association,
(b)	to restore the amount of any impairment of Stock and
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case may be. Any
Participation Certificates as prescribed in Section
such retirement and application against indebtedness
855.2 of these Bylaws;
of surplus account allocations shall be before similar
(c)	to restore the amount of any impairment of allocated
retirement and application of Stock or Participation
surplus;
Certificates owned by the borrower.
(d)	to restore the amount of any impairment of paid-in
surplus;
825.4 At the Board's discretion and subject to the Act,
(e)	to create and maintain an unallocated surplus account
Regulations, and any other restrictions, when all of the
as provided in Section 820 of these Bylaws;
Stock and Participation Certificates of the Association
(f)	to pay dividends on Stock of the Association if authoowned by a borrower are retired or otherwise disposed
rized pursuant to Section 830 of these Bylaws;
of, any surplus account allocations owned by such
(g)	to make patronage distributions if authorized pursuborrower may also be retired, upon request by the
ant to Section 835 of these Bylaws; and
borrower and subject to the approval of the Board, and
(h)	to transfer any remaining earnings to the reserved
the proceeds paid to the borrower. Alternatively, if
surplus account.
the Board so directs, upon notice to the borrower such
surplus account applications may be applied against
815.2 In the event of a net loss for any fiscal year, after applying
any of the borrower's indebtedness to Association,
earnings for such fiscal year as provided in Section 815.1
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case may be. As
above, such loss shall be absorbed by, first, charges to the
a condition, however, to the approval of a former
unallocated surplus account; second, impairment of paidborrower's application for an advance within two (2)
in surplus; third, impairment of the allocated surplus
years after retirement hereunder, the applicant must
account; fourth, impairment of Class B Common Stock,
first repay any allocated surplus proceeds resulting
Class D Common Stock, Class A Participation Certificates,
from such retirement which would not otherwise have
Class B Participation Certificates, concurrently; and
been paid through normal distributions.
fifth, impairment of Class A Preferred Stock and Class
C Preferred Stock, concurrently. Notwithstanding this 825.5	
Subject to the Act and the Regulations, allocated
Section, Class B Common Stock and Class A Participation
surplus may be distributed, oldest allocations first,
Certificates shall be retired in accordance with Section
in Class C Preferred Stock of the Association or in
4.9A of the Act.
cash. The cash proceeds may be applied against the
indebtedness of the borrower to the Association. In
820	Surplus Accounts
no event shall such distributions reduce the surplus
	The Association shall create and maintain an unalloaccount below the minimum amount prescribed by the
cated surplus account and may maintain an allocated
Act and the Regulations. Distributions of less than the
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full amount of all allocations issued as of the same date
shall be on a pro rata basis. If any part of a distribution
in Class C Preferred Stock to one borrower is less than
$5, such distribution may be held by the Association
and accumulated with subsequent partial distributions
to equal one whole share of Class A Preferred Stock or
Class C Preferred Stock.

830	Dividends
830.1 
In accordance with the Act and the Regulations,
the Board may declare dividends on the Stock and
Participation Certificates of the Association. Such
dividends may be paid on Class A Preferred Stock and
Class C Preferred Stock alone or on all classes of Stock
and Participation Certificates. No dividends may
be paid on Class B Common Stock, Class D Common
Stock, Class A Participation Certificates or Class B
Participation Certificates during any fiscal year with
respect to which the Association has obligated itself
to distribute earnings on a patronage basis pursuant
to Section 835 of these Bylaws. The rate of dividends
paid on Class A Preferred Stock and Class C Preferred
Stock for any fiscal year may not be less than the rate
of dividends paid on Class B Common Stock, Class D
Common Stock, Class A Participation Certificates or
Class B Participation Certificates for such year and,
similarly, the rate of dividends on Class B Common
Stock and Class D Common Stock may not be less than
the rate paid on Class A Participation Certificates and
Class B Participation Certificates.

830.2 Dividends may be paid to holders of record on the

effective date of the declaration, provided the Stock or
Participation Certificates were outstanding for at least
sixty (60) calendar days prior to the effective date of
the declaration.

830.3 Dividends on Stock and Participation Certificates may

be paid in cash, Class C Preferred Stock, or partly in
cash and partly in Stock, except that dividends on Stock
held by the FCB shall be paid in cash. If any part of such
dividends payable in Stock to one borrower are less than
$5, the dividends may be distributed in cash or held
by the Association and accumulated with subsequent
dividends until the retained dividends equal $5, so that
the dividends may be distributed as one whole share of
Class C Preferred Stock.

830.4 Dividends shall be noncumulative.
835
Patronage Refunds
835.1 P rior to the beginning of any fiscal year, the Board

may adopt a resolution in accordance with the Act
and the Regulations, so as to obligate the Association
to distribute to borrowers on a patronage basis all or
any portion of available net earnings of Association
for such fiscal year, or for that and subsequent fiscal
years. However, no patronage distribution will be paid
if the earnings available for distribution do not exceed
$500,000.

66 2011 Annual report

835.2 A ll patronage distributions shall be in the proportion

that the amount of interest earned by Association,
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA on its loans to each
borrower bears to the total interest earned by
Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA on all such
loans outstanding during the fiscal year, except that
another proportionate patronage basis may be used
upon approval by the Board in accordance with the Act
and the Regulations.

835.3 Net earnings of any fiscal year shall be available

for patronage distribution only after making the
applications as required in (a) through (e) of Section
815 and paying dividends on Class A Preferred Stock
and Class C Preferred Stock. Patronage allocations and
refunds received from the FCB in the form of stock shall
be excluded from net earnings available for patronage
distributions and dividends. The amount available for
patronage distributions for any fiscal year shall in no
event exceed the net earnings from patronage from
Association, MidAm, PCA and MidAm, FLCA borrowers
and from the patronage received from the FCB in the
form of cash for such year.

835.4	
Patronage distributions may be in cash, Class C

Preferred Stock, allocations of earnings retained in
an allocated surplus account, or any one or more of
such forms of distribution, except that at least twenty
percent of the total patronage distributions to any
borrower for any fiscal year shall always be in cash.
Cash distributions may not exceed twenty percent of
the patronage distribution if such distribution would
cause the surplus account at the end of the fiscal
year for which the distribution is paid to be less than
the minimum amount prescribed by the Act and the
Regulations. Any part of a patronage distribution in
Class C Preferred Stock to one borrower that is not a
multiple of $5 may be distributed in cash or held by
the Association for the borrower and included in a
subsequent distribution.

835.5	
Each holder of Class B Common Stock or Class D

Common Stock of this Association shall, by such act
alone, consent that the amount of any distributions with
respect to patronage which are made in written notices
of allocation, as defined in 26 U.S.C. 1388 (i.e. patronage
allocations of surplus account and patronage refunds
paid in Class C Preferred Stock of the Association, and
which are received by him or her from the Association),
will be taken into account as income by such person at
the stated dollar amounts in the manner provided in 26
U.S.C. 1385(a) in the taxable year in which such written
notices of allocation are received. Such holder of Class B
Common Stock or Class D Common Stock also consents
by such act alone, to take into account as income in the
same manner the amount of any distributions with
respect to patronage provided he or she receives written
notice from the Association that such amount has
been applied on his or her indebtedness to Association,
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case may be.

835.6	
T he Association shall obtain the written consent of

each holder of Class A Participation Certificates or
Class B Participation Certificates that the amount of
any distributions with respect to the holder's patronage,
which are made in written notices of allocations as
defined in 26 U.S.C. 1388 (i.e., patronage allocations
of surplus account, patronage refunds paid in Class
C Preferred Stock, or distributions with respect to
patronage that have been applied to the holder's
indebtedness to Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm,
FLCA, as the case may be, and for which the holder has
received written notice), will be taken into account as
income by the holder at the stated dollar amounts in the
manner provided for in 26 U.S.C. 1385(a) in the taxable
year in which such written notices of allocation are
received. The form of consent shall be prescribed by
the Board, except that it shall be continuing in effect
until revoked by the Class A Participation Certificate
or Class B Participation Certificate holder, and it may
be included as part of the loan application or other
appropriate form signed by borrowers. Consent may
also be obtained by use of a qualified check in the
manner provided for in 26 U.S.C. 1388.

835.7	
In the event of an Authorization Event under Section

in effect at the time the loan was made. Such equities
shall be retired at par, even if book value is less than par.
Such equities may also be retired under other conditions
approved by the Board with prior approval of the FCA.

850.2	Class C Preferred Stock, Class D Common Stock and
Class B Participation Certificates

	Subject to the Act, Regulations and any other restrictions,
such equities shall be retireable only at the discretion of
the Board and not on a date certain or upon the happening
of an event such as repayment of a loan or pursuant to an
automatic retirement or revolvement plan. Such equities
shall be retired at their book value and shall not exceed
their par value. No such equities shall be retired unless
after the retirement the institution would continue to
meet the minimum permanent capital standards or the
interim permanent capital standards, as the case may be.

850.3	Mandatory Retirement

	
At the Board's discretion and subject to the Act,
Regulations and any other restrictions (including minimum permanent capital standards), the Board may order
the retirement of such amounts of Class A Preferred
Stock or Class C Preferred Stock as it may determine
in accordance with procedures which assure equitable
treatment of all holders of Class A Preferred Stock or
Class C Preferred Stock.

210 hereof, the Association’s net earnings for purposes
of computing and paying patronage dividends shall
include the net earnings of MidAm, PCA and MidAm,
FLCA (computed on a consolidated basis).
850.4	Retirement in the Event of Default
	When the debt of a borrower is in default, the Association
840	Transfer
may, upon notice to such borrower, order the retirement
840.1 Stock and Participation Certificates may be transferred
of any Stock or Participation Certificates held by the
to persons or organizations eligible to receive or to hold
borrower and the proceeds thereof applied against the
such Stock or Participation Certificates as provided in
borrower's indebtedness to Association, MidAm, PCA or
Section 810 of these Bylaws.
MidAm, FLCA, as the case may be. Any such retirement
and application of Stock or Participation Certificates shall
840.2	
T he Association shall be its own transfer agent in
be after similar retirement and application of surplus
all matters relating to its Stock and Participation
account allocations owned by the borrower.
Certificates.

845	Conversion
845.1	
Each class of Stock and Participation Certificates may be

converted into any other class of Stock or Participation
Certificates for which the holder is eligible as provided
in Section 810.

845.2 Class B Common Stock shall be converted into Class

855	Impairment
855.1 A ny losses which result in an impairment of the

Association's capital shall be borne ratably by, first, each
share of Class B Common Stock and Class D Common
Stock, and each unit of Class A Participation Certificates
and Class B Participation Certificates outstanding;
and second, each share of Class A Preferred Stock and
Class C Preferred Stock outstanding. Notwithstanding
this Section, Class B Common Stock and Class A
Participation Certificates shall be retired in accordance
with Section 4.9A of the Act.

A Preferred Stock within two years after the holder
thereof ceases to be a borrower from Association,
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA. Class D Common Stock
shall be converted into Class C Preferred Stock within
two years after the holder thereof ceases to be a 855.2	
Impaired Stock and Participation Certificates shall
borrower from Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm,
be restored in the reverse of the sequence set forth
FLCA.
in Section 855.1 until each share of Stock and unit of
Participation Certificates has a book value equal to the
850	Retirement
par value or face value, respectively.

850.1	Class A Preferred Stock, Class B Common Stock,
and Class A Participation Certificates
860	Liquidation

	Retirement may be upon repayment of a loan or under
a retirement plan in effect prior to January 6, 1988, and
for such equities issued after that date, a retirement plan

	In the event of a voluntary or involuntary liquidation of
the Association, following the payment of all claims in
accordance with the Act and Regulations, the remainder
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of the assets of the Association shall be distributed to
the holders of Stock and Participation Certificates. In
the event there are insufficient funds to pay the holders of Stock and Participation Certificates at par value,
then distribution should be made in accordance with
the priorities for impairment set forth in Section 855.1
of these Bylaws. In the event funds are sufficient to pay
all holders of Stock and Participation Certificates at par
value, any excess funds shall be distributed, insofar as
practicable, to the holders of Class B Common Stock, Class
D Common Stock, Class A Participation Certificates and
Class B Participation Certificates in the proportion that
the aggregate interest paid by each holder over the prior
two years bears to the total interest paid by all holders
of stock and participation certificates.

865	Lien

	Except with respect to Stock or Participation Certificates
held by other System institutions, each of Association,
MidAm, PCA and MidAm, FLCA shall have a first lien on
all Stock and Participation Certificates in the Association
owned by its borrowers as additional collateral for any
indebtedness of such borrower. Upon an Authorization
Event, all Stock and Participation Certificates shall be
pledged to MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case may
be, as additional collateral for any indebtedness of the
borrower to MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, respectively.
Stock and Participation Certificates may not be pledged
or hypothecated to third parties.

870

Paid-In Surplus

	The Association is authorized to receive paid-in surplus from the FCB in accordance with the Act and the
Regulations.

875	Secondary Market Loans
875.1	Equity Retirement

	On or after 12-01-96 no stock or participation certificate
is required to be purchased as a condition for obtaining
a loan which is designated, at the time the loan is made,
for sale to a secondary market. Designated loans not
sold within the 180 day period shall be subject to the
equity requirement for loans as stated in bylaw 810.4(e)
or 810.6(e).

875.2	Retirement

	The Board is authorized to retire stock or participation certificates on those loans sold to a secondary market prior to
12-01-96 and on those loans designated for sale to the
secondary market but not sold within the 180 day time
period, provided however that the Association shall not
retire such stock or participation certificates if the action
would result in the failure of the Association to meet the
minimum permanent capital adequacy standard established in the FCA regulations.
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